# Alaska Bar Association

1989 Annual Report

		Link like	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
	INTRODUCTION	1
ı.	THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS	3
II.	ADMISSIONS PROCEDURES	9
III.	DISCIPLINE OF MEMBERS	20
IV.	CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION	28
v.	ALASKA PRO BONO PROGRAM	33
VI.	STATEWIDE LAWYER REFERRAL SERVICE	35
VII.	THE COMMITTEES OF THE ALASKA BAR	37
VIII.	MEMBERSHIP SERVICES	49
IX.	ADJUNCT INVOLVEMENT	52
х.	BUDGET	57

# THE ALASKA BAR ASSOCIATION Annual Report for the Year 1989

#### Board of Governors

Jeffrey M. Feldman, President
Daniel R. Cooper, Jr., President-Elect
Alex Young, Vice President
John M. Murtagh, Secretary
Lew M. Williams, Treasurer
Bruce A. Bookman
Andonia Harrison
Ardith Lynch
Elizabeth "Pat" Kennedy
Michael A. Thompson
Larry R. Weeks

#### Staff

Deborah O'Regan, Executive Director
Barbara Armstrong, Assistant Director & CLE Director
Virginia Ulmer, Executive Secretary
Geraldine F. Downes, Controller
Karen Gleason, Accounting Assistant
Shaunda H. Hale, Secretary/Receptionist
Shalese M. Dayton, Lawyer Referral Receptionist

Stephen J. Van Goor, Bar Counsel
C. J. Allen, Assistant Bar Counsel
Mark Woelber, Assistant Bar Counsel
Mary Lou Burris, Arbitration/Discipline/CLE Assistant
Norma L. Gammons, Discipline Secretary
Laura Hernandez, Discipline Secretary

February 1, 1990

#### INTRODUCTION

On November 4, 1884, some six months after the passage of the Organic Act, three attorneys were admitted to the practice of law in Alaska. In the next two years, the Bar -- practicing before the District Court of the United States in and for the District of Alaska -- increased to thirteen (13) members and, by 1896, there were fifty-nine (59) members. Of that number, approximately twenty-one (21) resided within the State, either in Juneau, Nome, "Wrangle," Sitka, Valdez, "Skaguay," or Berners Bay.

It was those individuals who, in November of 1896, in Juneau, organized the Alaska Bar Association. The governing documents were a Constitution and Bylaws. Its object was "to maintain the dignity of the legal profession, to secure proper legislation for Alaska, to promote the administration of justice, and to cultivate social intercourse among its members."

Membership was voluntary, annual fees were \$1.00 (now they are \$310.00), and six members constituted a quorum. The standing committees were legislation, judiciary, and grievance. The first President was John S. Bugbee.

In 1955, the structure changed somewhat with the passage of the Integrated Bar Act by the Territorial Legislature. Nevertheless, the essential functions and purposes continued, albeit on an expanded, more formal basis.

Currently, the Alaska Bar Association has 2,777 members in the following categories: Active, 2,347; Inactive, 413; Honorary, 1; Retired, 16. Its affairs are governed by a twelve (12) member (attorney and non-attorney) Board currently comprised of the following persons:

Jeffrey M. Feldman, President
Daniel R. Cooper, Jr., President-Elect
Alex Young, Vice-President
John M. Murtagh, Secretary
Lew M. Williams, Treasurer (public member)
Bruce A. Bookman
Andonia Harrison (public member)
Ardith Lynch
Elizabeth "Pat" Kennedy
Michael A. Thompson
Larry R. Weeks

Written guidelines for governance are contained in the Integrated Bar Act, the Alaska Bar Rules (promulgated by the Supreme Court of Alaska), the Code of Professional Responsibility, the Association's Bylaws and Regulations, the Board of Governors' Policy Manual, and a Personnel Manual.

The two most important functions of the Bar are the admission and discipline of its members, both of which are carried out under the supervision of the Supreme Court of Alaska.

There are presently 6 standing committees, 16 sections, 4 bar rule committees, and 2 special committees. In addition, the Bar Association participates in a number of adjunct organizations and administers special projects, such as the Statewide Lawyer Referral Service. In excess of half of the membership participates, voluntarily and without remuneration, in the affairs of the Association.

The staff of the Alaska Bar has grown from a part-time, volunteer executive secretary in 1968, to the following 12-1/2 full-time professionals:

Deborah O'Regan, Executive Director
Barbara Armstrong, Assistant Director & CLE Director
Virginia Ulmer, Executive Secretary
Geraldine F. Downes, Controller
Karen A. Gleason, Accounting Assistant
Shaunda L. Hale, Secretary/Receptionist
Shalese M. Dayton, Lawyer Referral Receptionist

Stephen J. Van Goor, Bar Counsel C. J. Allen, Assistant Bar Counsel Mark Woelber, Assistant Bar Counsel Mary Lou Burris, Arbitration/Discipline/CLE Assistant Norma L. Gammons, Discipline Secretary Laura Hernandez, Discipline Secretary

The Association is largely funded through monies garnered from its members through dues, continuing legal education programs, conventions, the Lawyer Referral Service, and interest income. The Association received no public monies in 1989.

#### I. THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

The Board of Governors consists of twelve (12) members, nine (9) attorney members and three (3) non-attorney members. The nine active members of the Alaska Bar are elected by their peers to govern the affairs of the Association. Serving three year staggered terms, two attorneys represent the First Judicial District, four are from the Third Judicial District, two serve the Second and Fourth Judicial Districts, and one member is elected at-large. Any vacancy is filled by the Board through appointment until the next election. The three non-attorney members are appointed by the governor and are subject to legislative confirmation. The "public" members also serve staggered three year terms.

The Board generally meets five to six times a year at dates and places designated by the President of the Association; special meetings may be called by the President or three members of the Board of Governors. In 1989 the Board held five (5) meetings (January 19 - 21; March 17 and 18; June 5-7; September 8; and October 27) and three (3) telephone conference meetings (March 31, August 15 and November 17). The Bar Convention and Annual Business Meeting were held in Anchorage, June 8 through 10.

#### A. Officers

There are five officers (President, President-Elect, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer), all of whom are elected from among the members of the Board by the active Association members in attendance at the annual meeting held in May or June of each year.

The President of the Bar Association presides at all meetings of the Board and of the Bar Association, and is designated as the official spokesperson for the Association.

The President-Elect of the Alaska Bar Association is required to assist the President in all the President's endeavors and take the place of the President if the President is unable to perform the duties of that office. The President-Elect is also responsible for maintaining good communication with the presidents of the various local bar associations across the State.

The Vice President of the Association acts as liaison to the Bar's fifteen sections and the Secretary is in charge of all of the Association's committee operations. The Treasurer is responsible for overseeing the fiscal affairs of the Association, including budget preparation, reports to the Board at each meeting, and the annual report to the membership.

# B. Purposes, Policies, and Procedures

In order to understand the commitment that each member of the Board of Governors makes, it is appropriate to review the Bylaws and policies of the Association, as well as the Alaska Bar Rules. Article 2, Section 2, of the Bylaws of the Alaska Bar Association sets out the purposes of the Association. They are:

- To cultivate and advance the science of jurisprudence;
- To promote reform in the law and in judicial procedure;
- 3. To facilitate the administration of justice; and
- 4. To encourage higher and better education for the membership in the profession, and to increase the usefulness and efficiency of the Bar Association.

The workload undertaken by members of the Board of Governors includes admissions, discipline, fiscal responsibility, and service activities. Admissions and discipline are discussed in other sections of this booklet. Illustrative of the other activities of the Board are the following:

- The Board of Governors is required to approve an annual budget, oversee investment of Association funds, and maintain control of expenditures.
- 2. The Board approves and publishes all formal ethics opinions which respond to requests for rulings and gives guidance to the membership in the ethical conduct of the profession.
- 3. The Board of Governors has overall responsibility for defining the powers, duties, and functions of all of the

committees of the Alaska Bar Association. These committees are designated as standing committees, as special committees, and as bar rule committees. The President appoints all members and designates a chairperson for each committee.

The members of all committees serve at the pleasure of the Board and their reports and recommendations must be adopted by the Board of Governors to be binding upon the Association.

- 4. The Board actively supports education and public relations, including programs in the schools with respect to the justice system, seminars for non-lawyers, institutional advertising, and a statewide lawyer referral service.
- 5. The Board oversees the administration of the Bar office and its staff, and has developed a personnel manual to guide its employees in the performance of their duties.
- 6. The Board recommends to the Supreme Court revisions and additions to the Alaska Bar Rules, and reviews and revises the Bylaws of the Association. In addition, the Board has promulgated a Policy Manual which sets forth the guidelines for the operation of the Board in all phases of Association activity.
- 7. In addition, the Board is directly responsible for all the other projects, programs, and activities described in this booklet.

#### C. Admissions

The Alaska Bar Rules set forth the responsibilities of the Board of Governors with respect to admissions. They include the following:

- 1. The Board of Governors shall examine or provide by contract for the examination of all applicants and determine or approve the time, place, scope, form, and content of all bar examinations.
- 2. The Board of Governors sets the standards for the examinations.
- 3. Under the Rules, the Board has the power to require the appearance of an applicant before the Board in an instance where there is concern on behalf of the applicant or the Board regarding the application procedure, or to refer the matter to a Master for the purpose of accumulating all of the facts and supplementing the record before a decision is made.
- 4. Both the Board members and the Master have the power to issue subpoenas, administer oaths and affirmations, and take testimony concerning any application for admission to the Alaska Bar Association.
- 5. The Board of Governors must develop an appropriate application form requiring the applicant to file the necessary evidence and documents in support of the applicant's eligibility for admission.
- 6. The Board sets the fees and dates for filing of all documents with the Association.
- 7. The Board is required to certify the results of each exam to the Supreme Court for the State of Alaska with its recommendations for admission.
- 8. In the event an applicant is denied an exam permit or is denied certification, the applicant is required to file a verified statement with the Board of Governors and, upon a review of the sufficiency of the verified statement, a hearing may be granted. The burden of proof is upon the applicant to prove material facts that constitute an abuse

of discretion or improper conduct on the part of the Board of Governors, the Executive Director, the Law Examiners Committee, or the Master appointed by the President. Each decision must be supported by findings of fact conclusions of law, with the Board having the power to adopt the decisions of the Committee or Master in whole or in part, or reject the recommendation its own findings draft along conclusions of law with appropriate order. In each instance, the applicant may appeal the decision of the Board of Governors to the Supreme Court.

# D. Discipline

One of the most critical areas of responsibility for the Board of Governors is the discipline of Association members.

Whenever a disciplinary matter is before the Board of Governors, the Board sits as the "Disciplinary Board of the Alaska Bar Association."

In that capacity, it appoints Bar Counsel, supervises the Bar Counsel and Bar Counsel staff, and appoints the Area Discipline Divisions of which there are currently three: one in the First Judicial District, one in the Third Judicial District, and one in the combined Second and Fourth Judicial Districts.

In addition, the Board is charged with overall responsibility for the functioning of the attorney discipline system, and for hearing appeals from the recommendations of the Hearing Committees. The Board administers reprimands and, in the case of disbarment, suspension, probation or public censure, forwards its recommendations to the Supreme Court of Alaska for final action.

The Disciplinary Board generally meets five to six times a year, not including conference telephone calls. Seven (7) members constitute a quorum. Records of disciplinary proceedings are maintained according to the Alaska Bar Rules promulgated by the Supreme Court.

#### E. Sunset

The Board of Governors was up for sunset review in 1989. The Division of Legislative Audit began conducting the performance audit in November, 1988 and issued its final report on February 3, 1989. They concluded that the Board of Governors operates in an effective and economical manner and should be reestablished.

HB 120 extending the term of the Board of Governors until 1993 passed out of the House, but was not passed out of the Senate before the end of the Legislative session. A hearing on HB 120 before the Senate Judiciary Committee was held on November 9. The committee chair indicated that the bill would be placed on the Senate consent calendar at the start of the legislative session.

# F. Miscellaneous Bylaw Amendments

The Board of Governors amended the bylaws of the Bar Association (Article II, section 2(b)) to require members to make the election to go on inactive status by January 1 of the applicable year in which they want to be inactive. The previous deadline of February 1 created some confusion among members who would practice law in January and then want to go inactive for the rest of the year. If a member practices law in Alaska at all during a particular year, the member is not eligible to be an inactive member for that year and must pay dues for the entire year.

Article V, section 5 was amended to provide that the executive director and at least two members of the Bar Polls and Elections committee may review and certify the count of votes cast in an election. The prior amendment required the committee members to do the actual counting of the ballots. The Board wanted to allow for more flexibility in the case of high ballot returns, when it may be more expeditious to use bar staff to count ballots, or contract out the ballot counting.

#### II. ADMISSIONS PROCEDURES

In order to practice law in the State of Alaska, membership in the Alaska Bar Association is a necessary prerequisite. In other words, it is an integrated (or unified) bar association.

# A. Requirements for Admission

Applicants for admission to the practice of law must 1) be graduates of an accredited law school; 2) pass the Alaska Bar Examination; 3) be determined to meet the standard of character and fitness as required pursuant to Bar Rule 2(1)(d); and 4) pass the Multistate Professional Responsibility Examination (MPRE). Attorneys who have been admitted in other jurisdictions but who did not graduate from accredited law schools may qualify to take the bar exam if they have been in active practice in another jurisdiction for five years or more.

The Alaska Supreme Court has adopted an admission without examination rule, with reciprocity provisions. (See Part J of this section for details on the amendments to the Alaska Bar Rules.)

The Alaska Bar Examination is intended to assist in the determination of whether applicants possess minimal competence to practice law. This includes the ability to analyze facts, apply the appropriate substantive and procedural law, and to effectively communicate the issues and the proposed solutions.

# B. Application Procedure

Information and application forms may be obtained from the Bar office. These include instructions and information on the examination; fingerprint cards; and an application form which includes an affidavit of personal history and an authorization and release form consenting to an investigation of moral character, professional reputation, and fitness for the practice of law. The application fee for first time applicants is \$600.00; for reapplicants (some one who has sat for and failed the Alaska Bar Exam within one year of application), the fee is \$325.00.

The Alaska Bar Association conducts a character investigation on each applicant for admission to the Bar based on information provided by the applicant, contacts initiated by the Bar office with individuals familiar with the applicant, and on other information which may be sought by or come to the attention of the Bar Association. No applicant is certified for admission, regardless of the applicant's score on the

written examination, if it is determined that he or she does not meet the required standard of character and fitness. The Bar Association may require a formal hearing with the introduction of sworn testimony and other evidence, where it determines that a hearing is necessary or appropriate to assist in its investigation. An applicant may appeal from an adverse determination on character to the Board of Governors and, if necessary, to the Alaska Supreme Court.

#### C. Bar Examination

The Alaska Bar Examination is conducted twice each year in Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau, and Ketchikan and in such other locations as the Board may direct. It consists of: 1) one and one-1 lf days of essay questions on Alaska law prepared by a perm and committee of the Association known as the Alaska Law Examiners; and 2) two half-days of objective, multiple choice questions (the Multistate Bar Examination or "MBE"), prepared by the National Conference of Bar Examiners and administered simultaneously in over forty states.

THE ESSAY EXAMINATION: Essay questions are of the analytical or problem type consisting of a hypothetical case or situation involving one or more principles of law. Answers to essay questions are expected to demonstrate the ability to analyze the facts presented by the questions, to select the material facts, to discern the points upon which the case turns, and to present the response in a logical, well-organized, literate manner.

The essay portion of the Alaska Bar Examination is structured as follows:

One half-day (three hour) session consists of three (3) "long" essay questions which require substantial legal analysis. An answer should reflect an applicant's knowledge and understanding of the pertinent principles and theories of law as applied in Alaska, their relationship to each other, and their qualifications and limitations. Answers should also demonstrate the applicant's ability to apply the law to the facts given and to reason logically -- in a lawyer-like manner -- to a sound conclusion.

One half-day (three hour) session consists of six (6) "short" essays which emphasizes substantive knowledge of the law as applied in Alaska; an answer should reflect an applicant's knowledge and understanding of the pertinent law, but will not require extensive discussion.

The <u>final half-day</u> (three hour) session consists of a research/analysis task (or practicum) which assesses how well an applicant can both evaluate the effect of various facts, statutes, and case law on a client's case and integrate and present the results of that analysis in written form. this session. In applicant is provided with an array of relevant factual and legal information about the client's case, such as previous cases, statutes, regulations, facts, documents, etc., and is best likened to an "open book" examination in that all the information needed is provided.

All three sessions of the essay examination will consist of essay questions which are to be answered in accordance with principles of law as applied in Alaska and may involve one or more issues on the following subjects:

Business Organizations (corporations, partnerships, associations)

Civil Procedure

Constitutional Law (State and Federal)

Contracts
(including Chapter 2 of the UCC)

Criminal Law and Procedure

Evidence

Family Law

Real Property

Torts
(including Products Liability)

In addition, and if applicable, <u>Remedies</u> may be tested as a part of each of the topics listed above.

The following procedures govern the drafting of the essay questions:

- At least 2 members of the Law Examiners Committee form a "team" to draft a question.
- One member of the team is a drafter;
   the other edits and reviews.

- 3. A grader's guide must be prepared at the time question is drafted.
- 4. The team suggests the tentative weights (points) to be assigned to the components of an answer recognized by the grader's guide as pertinent to a minimally competent answer.
- 5. The entire Law Examiners Committee meets and reviews each question as drafted by the teams.
- 6. The Committee next reviews each grader's guide to judge whether the Committee agrees that the question raises the same issues identified by the team in its analysis of the question.
- 7. The Committee reviews and either adopts or revises the tentative weights assigned to the components of each proposed grader's guide on a 100 point scale (no points are left for assignment at the discretion of graders).
- 8. The questions and proposed grader's guides are finalized and provided to Bar staff seven days prior to exam.

# D. Grading of Examinations

All examinations are graded anonymously using a double number coding system. A law examiner who is able to identify a particular applicant's examination paper is required to disqualify himself from the grading of that exam. The following procedures govern the grading of the essay exam:

- A calibration team consisting of at least five members of the Committee is convened for each essay question given on the exam;
- As a group, the team will read two randomly selected applicant answers to that essay question;
- 3. The team will compare and discuss the answers and agree on a ranking of the essay answers they have just read;

- 4. The team will then read a third essay answer, compare and discuss this answer with the answers previously ranked, and agree on a ranking of all the answers they have read. The team reads and ranks a total of ten answers;
- 5. The team will continue this process for at least 5 more answers and until the team is calibrated and the team selects five benchmarks;
- 6. The team reviews the grader's guide and the weights assigned to particular portions of the question to take into account any issues identified during the reading of the applicant answers; the 2 graders are responsible for amending the grader's guide into its final form;
- 7. The team selects five benchmark applicant essays; a benchmark is an answer which represents one of the 5 points on the grading scale. ("5" is high, "1" is low.) It is not a model answer, nor a minimally competent answer, but is a representative answer for this particular point on the scale;
- 8. From this calibration team, two people, not including any member of the original drafting team, are assigned to independently read and score each applicant's answer to the essay question they have just calibrated;
- 9. The two graders submit their scores to the Executive Director;
- 10. The Executive Director determines whether a discrepancy of more than one point exists between the rankings given by the two graders to a particular applicant on the question;
- 11. If a discrepancy of more than one point is found, the graders must reconcile their differences by reference to the benchmarks and grader's guide. The graders must agree on a score that is the same or no more than one point apart;
- 12. The two scores given to a particular applicant's answer are averaged for a final score on that essay;
- 13. The scores of the various sections of the essay exam (the short essay, long essay, and research/analysis question) are tabulated, weighted, and combined according to the attached procedures for determining the pass/fail status of applicants; and

14. A "combined" score of 140 and above shall be passing for the exam.

A passing score on the Alaska Bar Examination is determined by "combining" the scaled score received by the applicant on the MBE with the weighted score he or she received on the essay portion of the bar exam. A combined score of 140 or above is required to pass the Alaska Bar Examination. Applicants who receive a combined score between 139.00 and 139.99 will have appropriate portions of their essay exam reread by the graders before the scores are released. The mathematical procedures by which a combined score for each applicant is derived are performed for the Alaska Bar by the National Conference of Bar Examiner's (NCBE's) Division of Testing and is based on the scaled MBE and weighted essay scores provided to the NCBE by the Alaska Bar for each applicant.

The Multistate Bar Examination objective answer sheets are graded by machine by the National Conference of Bar Examiners. These scores are scaled to compensate for any difference in difficulty of the examination from one administration to another, based on a detailed national statistical analysis, a comparison of performance on repeat questions, and other factors.

In reviewing the examination results before certification, the Board of Governors receives a report on the examination, including irregularities (if any), a compilation of scores by applicant number for each portion of the examination, a sampling of "benchmark" papers, copies of the essay questions, and the grader's analysis for each question. Once the examination results are approved, the names of the passing and failing applicants are disclosed and the names of passing applicants are published. Individual scores are released to all failing applicants.

# E. Appeals

An applicant will be granted a hearing in either of two circumstances: 1) denial of an examination permit, or 2) denial of certification to the Supreme Court for admission. The applicant has the burden of alleging and proving an abuse of discretion or improper conduct on the part of the Executive Director, the Law Examiners Committee or the Board of Governors. If the applicant is not satisfied with the action taken on his appeal by the Board of Governors, he or she can appeal to the Alaska Supreme Court.

A failing applicant may obtain copies of the essay questions, his or her answers, the "benchmark" essays, a representative sampling of answers of other applicants who

received overall passing and overall failing scores, and the grader's guides for each of the essay questions. Failing applicants are further afforded an opportunity to review their Multistate Bar Examination questions, answers, and correct answers under a supervised policy which provides for the exam's security.

When a appeal is filed which raises factual issues of whether the Association has abused its discretion or acted improperly, the appeal is assigned to a Master for a hearing. The Master hears testimony, considers other evidence, and then prepares in writing a proposed decision supported by findings of fact and conclusions of law. The Master's report is then submitted to both the applicant and the Board. Thereafter, either the applicant or Bar Counsel may file exceptions and briefs and, upon request, may appear and present oral argument to the Board of Governors. The Board may adopt the decision of the Master in whole or in part, or reject it in its entirety and adopt its own findings of fact, conclusions of law, and issue its own decision.

On the other hand, if there are no factual matters in dispute, the Board may decide the appeal without assigning it to a Master. If there are questions concerning the applicable legal principles, the Board will consider written or oral argument from the applicant and from Bar Counsel and will issue a written decision.

The applicant may appeal any adverse decision by the Board of Governors to the Supreme Court, which is the final authority on admissions questions. The Supreme Court reviews the findings of fact, conclusions of law and recommendations concerning procedure, due process, or other matters which are raised by the applicant, and issues its decision, which if published, establishes precedent for future admissions cases.

Two admission appeal hearings from the July 1988 exam were The first applicant appealed a specific MBE held in January. 1 and 10. The Alaska Bar question and essay questions Association, because of the expression of non-involvement of the MBE administrators, was unable to discuss in detail the legal arguments raised by the applicant. Without the testimony from the MBE graders, the hearing master found that the deficiency left an evidentiary void. The hearing master recommended that both of the answers suggested by NCBE and by The master also heard the applicant be scored as correct. testimony from the four graders as to the rationale methodology used in grading the answers to essay questions 1 and 10. The master found that the rationale and analysis used in regard to applicant's essay answers were extremely fair and

evidenced the highest standards of testing and that the applicant failed in her burden with respect to the essay questions. The master's decision on the MBE question had the practical effect of raising the applicant's combined score above 140.00 and making her eligible for admission to the Bar.

In the second admission appeal from the July 1988 exam, the applicant alleged an abuse of discretion in the grading of essay question 9 and drafting of essay question 7. The master recommended that these points on appeal be dismissed. In the second half of this bifurcated appeal, the Board reserved points 3 and 4 for consideration by itself. The applicant contended that the notice provided to a failing applicant was not adequate to allow the applicant to make intelligent decisions and to formulate her appeal. Her last point alleged that the Alaska Bar Association abused its discretion by not regrading or rereading examinations other than those upon which the graders have disagreed and in not providing for independent regrade procedures. The Board of Governors denied applicant's appeal points and directed Bar Counsel to prepare comprehensive findings and conclusions concerning points 3 and 4 which will have precedential value in future appeals.

Following the results of the July 1989 exam, two applicants appealed challenging the use of the equi-percentile method for combining MBE and essay scores, and also challenged the method for providing access to the MBE. One of the applicants also appealed alleging an abuse of discretion on the grading of essay question 7, and the drafting and grading of essay question 2. The Board of Governors denied a hearing on the equi-percentile method and the access to the MBE issue, on the basis that these were policy decisions to be determined by the Board. The Board's decisions on these issues are reflected below in a discussion of amendments and policy changes. A hearing was held on the essay questions. The master found that there was no abuse of discretion on the drafting or grading of these questions.

# F. Assistance to Unsuccessful Applicants

The Board has a procedure for review of the MBE by failing applicants (which has also been reviewed and approved by the National Conference of Bar Examiners). The procedure allows failing applicants, upon request, to have a 3 hour period in which to review a copy of their answer sheet, a copy of the questions and the correct answers. Applicants are not permitted to take notes or copy any part of the test material.

In October, the Board voted to allow failing applicants to be accompanied to the MBE review by an attorney, licensed to practice law in the state of Alaska, and not associated with any bar review course.

The Board of Governors and NCBE felt that these procedures were a fair compromise between maintaining the security of the MBE and allowing applicants access to their MBE materials.

As a service to failing applicants, the Bar Association offers several alternatives for assistance. A member of the Tutoring Committee will, upon request, accompany the applicant for the purpose of reviewing the essay exams and assist in identifying the individual causes for failing the Bar Exam.

A failing applicant may also request a member of the Tutoring Committee to assist in peparing for the next bar exam. The tutoring emphasis is on how to write essay exams. Il applicants requested a tutor following the results of the February exam, and 12 applicants requested assistance after the July exam results were released.

# G. Statistical Summary

In 1989, 137 individuals applied for admission to the Bar and 86 were admitted.

1989 Alaska Bar Exam pass/fail statistics for the February and July exams are included in Appendix 1.

# H. The Multistate Professional Responsibility Exam (MPRE)

Passage of the MPRE is required as a condition of certification for admission to insure that persons admitted to the Alaska Bar are prepared to cope with ethical problems in the practice of law. The MPRE is not administered as a part of the bar exam, but is given separately three times a year (March, August, November) by the National Conference of Bar Examiners in cooperation with Educational Testing Services. This examination may be taken at any time by an applicant to the Alaska Bar (e.g., while still in law school; before the bar exam; after the bar exam). Receipt of a scaled score of 80 or above on the MPRE has been determined by the Board of Governors as demonstration of adequate awareness of the ethical responsibilities of the Code of Professional Responsibility and the Code of Judicial Conduct.

# I. Ongoing Review of the Exam

The Board of Governors retains the assistance of Stephen P. Klein, Ph.D., who is a consultant to the National Conference of Bar Examiners and many state boards of bar examiners on statistical studies of bar examinations. He is a senior research scientist with the Rand Corporation in Santa Monica, California and a nationally recognized authority on bar examinations. Dr. Klein's assistance in the development of the "All Alaska" Bar Exam, necessitated by the withdrawal of the assistance of the California Bar Examiners effective with the July, 1982 Bar Exam, was invaluable. The essay drafting and grading procedures detailed above in "D" of this Section were developed with his advice and counsel, as was the decision to "combine" the essay and MBE scores after "scaling" the weighted essay scores to the MBE scaled scores.

#### J. Admission Without Examination

Effective January 1, 1985, the Alaska Supreme Court approved an admission without examination rules, with reciprocity provisions. The amendment to Bar Rule 2 removed the requirement that applicants for admission who have practiced law five or more years must take a bar exam prior to admission. Rather, such applicants would be able to apply for admission "upon motion" and without examination, so long as the applicant met certain requirements outlined below.

First, the attorney seeking admission on motion rather than by examination has to meet a number of general standards required of any applicant for admission (i.e., be a graduate of an accredited law school; be at least 18 years of age; and be of good moral character). In addition, the attorney must also have passed a written bar exam administered by another jurisdiction and have engaged in the active practice of law in one or more reciprocal states for five of the seven years preceding application to the Alaska Bar.

A "reciprocal" state or jurisdiction is one which has a rule providing that attorneys admitted in Alaska may be admitted to that jurisdiction without examination and under prerequisites similar (but not more demanding) than those set forth in Bar Rule 2. A total of twenty-five (25) jurisdictions provide for admission without examination.

In 1989, eight applicants applied for and were admitted by admission without examination.

In September the Board submitted a proposed rule change to the Supreme Court which would tie the reciprocity provision into the jurisdiction where the applicant passed a written bar exam rather than the jurisdiction(s) where the applicant engaged in the practice of law. This would avoid confusion over questions of eligibility when applicants practice law in several states, or when attorneys practice in a state in which they are not admitted, e.g., when an attorney works for the federal government.

# K. Admissions Rule Amendments and Policy Changes

As a result of the issues raised on the admissions appeals from the July 1989 bar exam, the Board of Governors decided to review their policy decisions regarding the equi-percentile method of combining the MBE and essay scores as well as the procedures for failing applicants to review the MBE.

At the October Board meeting, the Board voted, that for future exams, the standard deviation method of combining the MBE and essay scores would be used. The Board also reviewed the procedures for review of the MBE. The Board decided that applicants may bring some one to review the MBE with them, as long as that person is an attorney, licensed to practice law in Alaska, and not associated with any bar review course.

The Board of Governors recommended that Bar Rules 2, 5, 6, and 61 be amended. These changes were to provide more concrete guidance in assessing an applicant's character and fitness to practice law. The amendments list ten items which would be treated as cause for further inquiry in the character investigation process of applicants to the Bar. Ten factors are then listed for consideration in assigning weight and significance to prior conduct. These amendments were adopted by the court with an effective date of July 15, 1989.

#### III. DISCIPLINE OF MEMBERS

The activities of attorneys admitted to practice within the State of Alaska are governed by the Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement promulgated by the Alaska Supreme Court. be seen below, the substance and procedure of the rules of the Bar Association and the Supreme Court in regulating the practice of law within Alaska are entirely different from those of agencies of the State of Alaska charged with the regulation of legislatively controlled businesses and professions. For example, a ruling as to a permit or license issued by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board is final and binding, subject only to the right of a party to appeal questions of law to the Superior Court and, thereafter, if desired, to the Supreme In matters involving public censure, probation, Court. suspension, or disbarment of attorneys, however, the Supreme Court is the decision maker, acting not as an appellate body but as the final forum with authority to make and enforce disciplinary decisions.

of the Rules of Disciplinary thorough revision Enforcement was accomplished by the Board in 1984 and made effective by the Supreme Court on January 1, 1985. The most significant change is the opening of attorney discipline proceedings to the public after a Petition for Formal Hearing is filed. Now, the public is able to attend formal discipline before hearing committees and conducted hearings Disciplinary Board in the same way as they have been able to attend court or other government proceedings. The following discussion reflects the revised procedures in effect.

# A. The Supreme Court's Authority

The Supreme Court has held that an attorney's license to practice law is "a continuing proclamation by the Court that the holder is fit to be entrusted with professional and judicial matters...as an officer of the courts."

Attorneys are, therefore, bound to act in conformity with standards adopted or recognized by the Supreme Court of The Supreme Court has also declared that any attorney admitted to practice in Alaska, or who appears or participates legal matters within the subject to State, is jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of Alaska and the Disciplinary Board which the Court established.

Due to the vastness of the size of the State of Alaska and the great distance between population centers, the Supreme Court has established three disciplinary areas: 1) the First Judicial District; 2) the combined Second and Fourth Judicial

Districts; and 3) the Third Judicial District. Charges of misconduct against a lawyer are assigned to be heard by members of the hearing committee established for the district in which the attorney lives or practices. Such charges may be based upon a violation of the Code of Professional Responsibility, Ethics Opinions adopted by the Board of Governors, criminal convictions, or misconduct within or arising from disciplinary proceedings themselves. Depending on the severity of the misconduct, violations may result in disbarment, suspension, probation, or public censure by the Court or, in less serious cases, in public or private reprimand by the Disciplinary Board or written private admonition by Bar Counsel.

# B. The Disciplinary Board

As discussed above, the Board of Governors acts as the Disciplinary Board for the Supreme Court. The day-to-day workings of the disciplinary process have been delegated to Bar Counsel and Assistant Bar Counsel, attorneys hired by the Board, whose functions include assisting the public in the grievance process, maintaining records, investigating, processing, and prosecuting grievances and appeals.

The procedures for disciplinary enforcement begin upon the filing of a grievance by any person alleging misconduct on the part of any attorney. During this stage, grievances against attorneys are confidential by court rule. Bar Counsel reviews the grievance to determine whether it is properly completed and contains allegations which, if true, would constitute grounds for discipline. If Bar Counsel determines that the allegations are inadequate or insufficient to warrant an investigation, an investigation will not be opened. If a grievance is accepted for investigation, the attorney involved is required to provide full and fair disclosure in writing of all the facts and circumstances pertaining to the alleged misconduct.

If Bar Counsel determines that probable cause exists to believe that attorney misconduct as occurred, permission may be requested from a Hearing Committee member to issue a written private admonition (in less serious cases) or to file a Petition for Formal Hearing in serious matters. Once the petition is filed, the proceedings are open to the public.

#### SUMMARY OF PUBLIC DISCIPLINE ACTIONS IN 1989

The Alaska Supreme Court suspended three attorneys from the practice of law in 1989: (1) Scott D. Harless for four years effective March 2, 1989; (2) Homer L. Burrell for 90 days effective August 21, 1989; and (3) Ranald H. Jarrell for four years effective November 3, 1989.

# 1989 DISCIPLINE CASE STATISTICS\*

Open cases pending as of January 1, 1989	•	166
New cases opened in 1989	. (+)	117
Cases closed in 1989:		
Closed after disbarment by Supreme Court Closed after suspension by Supreme Court Closed after public censure by Supreme Court Closed after public reprimand by Disciplinary Board	6	
Closed after private reprimand by Disciplinary Board	4	
Closed after private admonition by Bar Counsel	17 4 91	
TOTAL cases closed	(-)	122
Open cases as of December 31, 1989	•	161
STATUS OF OPEN CASES AS OF 12-31-89		
Pending Supreme Court	. 2	
Pending Stipulation	. 2	
Pending Private Admonition	. 2	k 🖈
In abeyance pending outcome of related fee arbitration proceeding	. 1	
In abeyance pending conciliation	. 2	
	161	

<sup>\*</sup>All numbers reflect individual complaints filed and not the number of attorneys under investigation.

<sup>\*\*</sup>There are two attorneys on probation: one attorney with three complaints, and one attorney with one complaint.

# C. The Hearing Committee

Investigations which result in the filing of a Petition for Formal Hearing by Bar Counsel are referred to a Hearing Committee in the relevant geographical area. The attorney may thereafter file a written answer admitting or denying the charges, or setting forth a claim of mitigation. Hearings are then held before the Committee. At the hearing, Bar Counsel prosecutes the case on behalf of the Bar Association. The responding attorney may be represented by counsel. Either party may call, examine, and cross-examine witnesses and otherwise request the production of evidence. The burden of proving misconduct by clear and convincing evidence is placed upon Bar Counsel. The Committee may direct the submission of briefs.

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Committee must file a written report to the Board, together with the recorded transcript, briefs, findings, conclusions and recommendations. If either party appeals from the Committee's recommendation, briefs may be filed with the Board. If desired, the matter may be orally argued to the Board. The Board must then conduct a review of the record and briefs and enter its order or recommendation to the Court.

#### D. The Recommendation

If the Board's decision recommends either public censure, probation, suspension, or disbarment, the recommendation is filed with the Supreme Court, which makes the final decision. The Board must submit a case record, including the hearing transcript, to the Supreme Court. The parties are required to file briefs in accordance with the Supreme Court rules for regular civil and criminal appeals; oral argument is available. It is only after review of this record by the Court that the Court enters its order relating to the attorney's discipline. The Court may also issue a opinion published in the Pacific Reporter which becomes a precedent for future cases.

The Board may order public reprimand by the Board if it decides the matter can be resolved appropriately without referral to the Court. The Board may also consider stipulations of proposed discipline entered into between Bar Counsel and a respondent attorney and enter an order for a private reprimand by the Board or submit its recommendation on the stipulation to the Supreme Court.

As with civil litigation, many of the above procedures may be lengthy or protracted before the issuance of a Hearing Committee report or a Board order. Thus, a need exists -- and

a procedure has been formulated -- whereby either party can make an interlocutory appeal to the Supreme Court for review of the procedures and evidentiary rulings of the Hearing Committee.

# E. Interim Suspension

The Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement anticipate situations requiring immediate action against an attorney for protection of the public pending the completion of the full disciplinary process. One such situation exists when an attorney is convicted of a serious crime, such as a felony or when he is convicted of certain other crimes including those relating to interference with justice, false swearing, fraud, deceit, misappropriation or theft.

Conviction of such a crime is conclusive evidence that disciplinary action is necessary. The sole issue for determination is the nature of the final discipline to be imposed. Such a conviction also requires interim suspension, regardless of whether the conviction is based on a jury verdict or a plea of guilty, and regardless of whether an appeal is pending. In the event the conviction is reversed, the suspension is lifted, but formal disciplinary proceedings may nevertheless continue to final disposition.

Further, if Bar Counsel shows that an attorney's conduct constitutes a substantial threat of irreparable harm to his or her clients or prospective clients or where there is a showing that the attorney's conduct is causing great harm to the public by a continuing course of conduct, the Court may impose interim suspension.

An attorney facing disciplinary charges cannot avoid the consequence of his misconduct by simply leaving the practice of law, thus leaving open the possibility of a future return to the profession. The Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement do permit discipline by consent of attorneys under disciplinary investigation but only upon the free and voluntary admission by the attorney that he is guilty of the charges, and with the consent of Bar Counsel, the Board and/or the Court.

# F. The Court's Order

When either disbarment, suspension or probation is ordered by the Court, more is involved than a simple order to that effect. There are various notification requirements to that attorney's clients, to opposing counsel and other jurisdictions in which the attorney is admitted. Sworn proof that these notification requirements have been met must be filed with the Court. Proof of compliance with these requirements is a prerequisite to any subsequent reinstatement.

The Bar Rules, however, do not rely solely on notification by the disbarred, or suspended attorney. They also require the Board to publish notice of disbarment and suspension in a newspaper in Anchorage, Fairbanks and Juneau, the official Bar publication and a newspaper serving the community where the attorney practiced. The Board must also advise the presiding judges of all courts within the State and, through the Attorney General, all administrative agencies.

#### G. Reinstatement

Disbarred or suspended attorneys can, under certain circumstances and procedures, be reinstated to the practice of law. However, in cases of disbarment, a minimum of five years must pass before the attorney is eligible for reinstatement.

Petitions for reinstatement are filed with the Supreme Court and served upon the Executive Director for the initiation of reinstatement proceedings.\* As with the imposition of discipline, the findings and recommendations of the Hearing Committee -- and thereafter the Board -- are only advisory, and the final determination on reinstatement is made by the Supreme Court. In order to be reinstated, a disbarred attorney or an attorney suspended for more than one year has the primary burden of establishing that he or she possesses the moral qualifications, competency, and knowledge of law required for admission to practice and that the attorney's resumption of practice will not be detrimental to the integrity and standing of the Bar, or to the administration of justice, or subversive of the public interest.

# H. Disability

The Rules of Disciplinary Enforcement also anticipate circumstances where the need for protection of the public arises from an incapacitating illness, addiction to drugs or

<sup>\*</sup>Attorneys who have been suspended for one year or less will be automatically reinstated by the Court unless Bar Counsel files an opposition to automatic reinstatement. Attorneys who have been disbarred or suspended for more than one year must appear before an appropriate Area Hearing Committee.

intoxicants, senility, death, disappearance, or judicially declared incompetence of an attorney, rather than actual misconduct by the attorney. Upon a finding by the Supreme Court that such a disability exists, an order is entered transferring the attorney to disability inactive status until further order of the Court during which time the attorney is prohibited from engaging in the practice of law. As with public discipline, notice of the Court's action must be published. Likewise, presiding judges of all courts and administrative agencies are also notified. However, while the Court's final order is public, the disability proceedings themselves are confidential.

Reinstatement of the right to practice can thereafter only be granted by the Supreme Court upon a showing by the attorney that the disability no longer exists and that he or she is fit to resume the practice of law.

While the above procedures are designed to remove the disabled attorney from active status, it is essential that the interests of the clients of the disabled, deceased or unavailable attorney are also protected. Thus, the Bar Rules provide for appointment by the Superior Court of Trustee Counsel to protect the interests of this unavailable attorney and his clients. Trustee Counsel, on behalf of the unavailable attorney, exercises powers similar to those of a personal representative of a deceased person, but does so only in those matters specifically provided in the rules and allowed by State law.

# I. Alternative Proceedings

Some grievances do not rise to the level of professional misconduct warranting formal discipline. Nevertheless, two other forums are available to review the reasons for a client's dissatisfaction.

If the matter involves a dispute concerning the fee charged by an attorney, it is referred to a Fee Arbitration Panel. If the allegations involve a grievance which is not amenable to either discipline or fee arbitration, it is referred to a Conciliation Panel. Both are more fully discussed in Section VIII of this booklet.

# J. Discipline Staff and Budget

The Discipline Section is currently staffed by Bar Counsel, Assistant Bar Counsel, a half-time assistant Bar Counsel, one part time Discipline Assistant, and two Discipline Secretaries. Bar Counsel has the overall responsibility for the review, investigation, prosecution and appeal of attorney grievance cases. This level of staffing is a reflection of the continued commitment by the Board to the efficient and thorough processing of grievance matters.

Expenditures for the Discipline Section totalled \$301,538 in 1989, a substantial commitment of Bar Association resources and a reaffirmation of the Bar Association's responsibility for the protection of the public through the attorney discipline process.

# K. Bar Rule Changes in 1989

The Supreme Court revised Bar Rule 15(b) to prohibit disbarred or suspended attorneys from providing legal advice or preparing legal documents for another even if they are not compensated for the service. This change is effective January 15, 1990.

The Court amended Bar Rules 21(c) and 22(b) to authorize a trial judge to allow the discovery of discipline files under certain circumstances in criminal cases.

Bar Rule 38(c) of the fee arbitration rules was changed to explicitly authorize the fee arbitration executive committee to refer apparent violations of the Bar Rules for disciplinary investigation.

The Court approved a name change from "discipline counsel" to "bar counsel" for the attorneys employed by the Bar Association in the disciplinary process.

Finally, although not a Bar Rule, the court made an amendment to Disciplinary Rule 9-102 which requires an attorney to provide a notice of whether he or she intends to maintain an IOLTA trust account. IOLTA stands for Interest on Lawyer Trust Accounts. The program provides that interest on nominal sums or short term deposits in an attorney's care which would ordinarily be kept by a financial institution is instead paid to the Alaska Bar Foundation to provide funds for civil legal services to the poor. Further information on the IOLTA program can be found in this report under section IX, ADJUNCT INVOLVEMENT.

#### IV. CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION

Continuing Legal Education programs and activities are an important part of the work of the Alaska Bar Association and are in furtherance of its goal of serving and assisting the legal profession in the State of Alaska. Programs and activities presented for Continuing Legal Education (CLE) purposes are for the professional development and enhancement of the membership of the Alaska Bar Association. It is of the utmost importance that the Bar Association provide sufficient CLE seminars to allow attorney members to keep abreast of new developments in the field of law.

The supervisory responsibility for presenting and administering all CLE programs and activities is placed upon the Continuing Legal Education Committee and the Association's Director of Continuing Legal Education. The CLE Committee is composed of 13 Bar Association members: 12 attorney members representing the various geographic areas of the state, and 1 judicial representative. All members serve staggered 3-year terms.

The 16 substantive law sections of the Bar Association are responsible for sponsoring one CLE seminar a minimum of every two years. Most sections sponsor one CLE activity per year, in addition to holding regular monthly section meetings and an annual meeting at the yearly Bar convention. Other CLE seminars not sponsored by a particular Substantive Law Section are sponsored by the CLE Committee itself.

In 1989 the CLE program sponsored 24 live programs in Anchorage and 1 live program in Fairbanks with a total member attendance for the year of 1,335 (970 members/365 non-members). Average attendance at a CLE was 71. The most challenging CLE presented in 1989 was the National Institute of Trial Advocacy (NITA) Skills Course, an intensive 8-day program for 48 attorneys presented by a faculty of 17 practitioners and judges from across the United States. Local and Outside faculty provided a program of one-on-one training for our members which culminated in 12 simultaneous mock trials presided over by local volunteer judges, and augmented by over 100 local community volunteer jurors and witnesses.

Overall program income exceeded this year's target; however, the general CLE budget, which includes indirect costs of staff time and overhead, experienced a shortfall. This shortfall is significantly lower than in past years. The general fund of the Bar Association covers the indirect costs of CLE programs, including staff time. This financial arrangment allows the bar to offer programs at lesser registration fees than if administrative indirect costs had to be covered by direct program income. The Bar also offers a

registration fee credit option of up to 50% to members traveling into Anchorage via commercial carrier for a CLE program.

An expanded 2-day "Bridge-the-Gap" program for new admittees to the practice of law in Alaska was also presented in 1989. Ten sections participated in this program designed to help "bridge-the-gap" between the theory of law school and the practice of law, with emphasis on Alaskan legal practice.

In addition, updates to the 3rd edition of the "Bridge-the-Gap" manual were received from ten sections, and included for the first time were the topics of "Criminal Defense," Criminal Prosecution," "Paralegal Profitability," "Collections and Executions," "Discovery," "Fast Track Rule," "Professional Conduct for the Non-Attorney," and "Tort Claims."

Group video replays of live programs are regularly scheduled in Juneau, Fairbanks and Kodiak, to meet the educational needs of bar members outside Anchorage, the usual venue for live programs. There is an average attendance of 5 bar members at each of these programs. Bar members receive CLE credit for attending a group video replay. A bar member in each city serves as the volunteer coordinator for these programs and handles scheduling, logistics, and registration.

A CLE Policy Statement and Guidelines was adopted by the Board of Governors in 1989. This Policy Statement and Guidelines aids the Bar in administering the CLE program and provides assistance to the CLE Director, CLE Committee, and Sections in developing CLE activities. The policy requires, for example, that the ethical content of every CLE topic be addressed at least peripherally at every CLE seminar, and clarifies the procedures for developing and sponsoring programs.

At the 1989 Annual Convention in Juneau, a resolution was passed to draft a proposed Mandatory Continuing Legal Education (MCLE) Rule requiring members to accrue a minimum number of CLE credits for seminars attended over a given period. A MCLE Committee was appointed to draft the Rule, and after consideration of comments by the CLE Committee, finalized a draft to be presented to the Board of Governors at their January 1990 meeting.

The CLE Library is now administered by the CLE Assistant and has dramatically improved service to bar members. The library contains videotapes (1/2" VHS) of all live programs, copies of course materials for each CLE, copies of Annual Section Updates, and a small number of audiotapes of short CLE programs. The library receives an average of 5 videotape rental and/or course materials requests per day, and usual response time to the request is 24 hours. Tape rental is normally \$10.00 per person plus \$25 per set of course materials. Priority is always given to bar members outside of

Anchorage. Library materials are also available for purchase including CLE course materials and Section Annual Updates. A CLE Library Catalog is scheduled for distribution in January 1990, and a CLE Calendar and Video Replay Calendar are routinely distributed and published in the <u>Bar Rag</u>.

In an effort to enchance the image of our CLE programs and create a more identifiable "look" for CLE brochures, as well decrease our printing costs, the CLE program now has a standard brochure designed by a graphic artist, and nearly all brochures are photocopied, rather than offset printed. Response to the new format has been excellent.

Over 125 attorney and non-attorney lecturers served as faculty for the 24 CLE programs presented live in 1989:

# ALASKA BAR ASSOCIATION CLE CALENDAR

Programs are full day unless otherwise noted.

# <u> 1989</u>

#01 January 26 Lunch Program 1 CLE credit	Review of the New Recording Act	Hotel Captain Cook
#02 February 15 7.2 CLE Credits	Forensic Engineering: Testimony, Demonstrative Evidence and Exhibits	Anchorage Hilton
#03 February 24 AM Miniseminar 4.5 CLE Credits	Wrongful Discharge (ABA Tape Series & local commentary)	Hotel Captain Cook
#12 Feb 27,28 & Mar 1 22.8 CLE credits	Courtroom Procedures (Law Enforcement Coordinating Comm. & Crim. Pros. Section	Egan Conv. Ctr.
#11 March 3 Afternoon 4.5 CLE Credits	Tax Aspects of Bankruptcy & Insolvency(ASCPA, AATC,ASIA)	Clarion Hotel
#96 March 7-9 9.6 CLE Credits	Hawaii CLE: Unorthodox Trial Techniques	Sheraton Kauai
#04 March 14 7.2 CLE Credits	Loan Documentation	Hotel Captain Cook
#04 March 16 7.2 CLE Credits	Loan Documentation (Live repeat of Anchorage program)	Sophie's Station, Fairbanks

#05 March 27 Half Day 3.3 CLE Credits	Securities Law for Non-Securities Lawyers	Hotel Captain Cook
#07 April 20-22 Half Day on Th and Fri Full Day on Sat 19.8 CLE Credits	Bridge the Gap	Hotel Captain Cook
#09 May 25-26 18 CLE credits	5th Annual Alaska Tax Conference (with APU & Ak Society of CPAs	Anchorage Hilton
#08 June 8-10 6 CLE credits 3 CLE credits	Annual Convention - CLE: Negotiations Skills (1 day) Media and the Law (3-hr.)	Juneau
#16 July 12 7.2 CLE credits	Alaska Corporate Code	Hotel Captain Cook
#13 July 18 7.2 CLE credits	Foreclosure Issues in AK	Hotel Captain Cook
#06 Sept 7 Half Day 4.2 CLE credits	Adoption Issues	Hotel Captain Cook
#17 Sep 7-8 12 CLE credits	Fed. Sentencing Guidelines (in coop. with US Dist. and Probation Office)	Federal Bldg.
#10 Sep 16-23 63 CLE credits	NITA of the North - 8-day Intensive Trial Advocacy Program	Hotel Captain Cook
#15 Oct 27 4.4 CLE credits Half day	Maritime Personal Injury	Hotel Captain Cook
#18 Oct 31 & Nov 2 10.8 CLE credits 2 Half days	Fed. & State Sentencing Guidelines	Anchorage Hilton
#25 Nov 8 3.4 CLE credits Half day	Malpractice Survival	Hotel Captain Cook
#19 Nov 16 8.4 CLE credits	2nd Annual AK Native Law Conference	Hotel Captain Cook

#28 Nov 29 1.8 CLE credits **AM Miniseminar**  Off the Record

Hotel Captain

Cook

#22 Dec 5 2.7 CLE credits **AM Miniseminar** 

Basic Nuts & Bolts of Foreclosures

Hotel Captain

Cook

A total of 24 live programs were presented in 1989.

A small number of CLE programs each year are presented on a with organizations outside the cooperative basis Association, such as Professional Education Group and ALI-ABA. Generally, Bar CLE programs are developed in-house volunteer faculty from the Bar Association.

#### V. ALASKA PRO BONO PROGRAM

The Alaska Pro Bono Program (APBP), jointly sponsored by the Alaska Legal Services Corporation (ALSC) and the Alaska Bar Association, is a State-wide, Direct-Service Pro Bono program involving private and public attorneys in the delivery of free legal services to low-income Alaskans. The APBP is the only Private Bar Involvement program in Alaska, a state twice the size of Texas with a population only half the size of Dallas, and is staffed by a full-time coordinator and a part-time support person. All ALSC staff assist the coordinator in administering the APBP.

Clients with civil law problems approach ALSC for free legal representation. Screening of these individuals by ALSC personnel determines if the client meets federal poverty guidelines and ALSC priorities. The case is then forwarded to APBP for referral to an attorney who has volunteered to take one case per year in his/her area of expertise.

Attorneys who volunteer to become members of APBP agree to take cases in at least one of the following areas of law: consumer finance or bankruptcy; public benefits or health or employment issues; domestic relations; housing; Alaska Native issues; wills and/or probate. When a client from a particular region of the State requires legal assistance, an attorney from that region who has volunteered in that specific area of law, is contacted. If no attorneys are available in that region, the Pro Bono Coordinator attempts to make the next best referral which would be most convenient to both client and volunteer attorney.

If an attorney is available, and accepts the case, the client is referred to him/her for full representation. The attorney is then contacted on a regular basis to ensure that the case is progressing satisfactorily. When the case is completed, the attorney provides APBP with a form summarizing the action taken on the case, the outcome of the case, and itemizes the time spent on the case, as well as expenses incurred, which are reimbursed by APBP.

Currently, APBP has a panel of 836 volunteer attorneys throughout Alaska, or 52.4% of the State's available Bar Association membership, with an open case load of 350 - 400 open cases at any one time. These cases can range from the most complex litigation to emergency death-bed wills to issues facing Alaskan Natives. Appendix 2 shows in which Alaska communities the APBP operates, the number of panel members in each community, and the numbers of cases closed from 1983 to December, 1989.

The APBP provides free CLE training seminars for its volunteer attorneys, as well as malpractice coverage, cost reimbursement, free depositions, free medical testimony in disability and family law cases, free process service, and free computerized research services. Additional services for the client community includes: free monthly classes to provide assistance to clients who wish to obtain uncontested divorces pro se (without representation by an attorney); pro se custody classes for uncontested custody and support orders for unmarried parents; pro se Chapter 7 Bankruptcy class; weekly advice-only question and answer clinics; Elderlaw projects for low-income clients over 60 years old, offering assistance in the areas of wills, public benefits, and housing. These advice-only and pro se clinics, held in numerous cities throughout Alaska, served well over 1,000 people in 1989. More than 250 elderly received assistance through the Elderlaw Projects last year.

In addition, the APBP has developed a set of Rules to govern the appointment of counsel for <u>pro se</u> parties in U.S. District Court. These new procedures, created in cooperation with the U.S. District Court in Alaska, took effect on January 1, 1989. To date, 12 cases have been referred to volunteer attorneys through these Rules.

The APBP is also proud to boast that more than 200 non-attorney professionals (doctors, court reporters, certified public accountants, translators, private investigators) have joined the program. In 1989, the total number of hours donated to the APBP was more than 7,000.

The APBP received a \$50,000 grant from the Alaska Bar Foundation from the Interest on Lawyers' Trust Accounts (IOLTA) program.

#### VI. STATEWIDE LAWYER REFERRAL SERVICE

The Bar Association operates a Lawyer Referral Service for the purpose of providing the general public with names of active members of the Alaska Bar Association who are in good standing and are willing and able to accept referral clients at a reasonable fee.

Enrollment in the Service is voluntary and all active members of the Association are urged to participate. Each participating lawyer pays an enrollment fee of \$25.00 per category selected for listing in up to five panels in any calendar year. Attorneys who are renewing a panel may pay an enrollment fee of \$10.00

Each caller requesting services is given the names of three lawyers in his/her geographical area who are listed in the category requested. Each lawyer pays a \$2.00 surcharge on each referral made regardless of whether the caller actually contacted the lawyer as a result of the referral. The first half-hour conference may be charged at a maximum of \$35.00. Thereafter the fee is agreed upon by the attorney and the client.

In 1989, 176 attorneys from across the State were enrolled in twenty-eight categories in the Lawyer Referral Service. All lawyers participating in the Service must maintain "Errors and Omissions" insurance of at least \$50,000.

In 1983, the Bar Association installed a Zenith number so that callers statewide could call the Lawyer Referral Service at no charge. In 1985, the Association switched the Lawyer Referral Service to an in-state (800) number. This results in increased convenience to callers who can now dial the service directly, without operator assistance. This also results in a savings of approximately \$238.00 a month to the Bar Association since there is no Zenith line charge now, but only the cost of the phone calls.

The annual call summary shows that the referral service has developed into the public service it was first envisioned. In an average month, the Bar receives 718 requests for referrals.

Calls received by the Alaska Bar Association for Lawyer Referrals were as follows:

	1988	1989
Administrative	274	301
Admiralty	31	31
Arts	7	4

Bankruptcy	373	329
Commercial	292	234
Construction	14	6
Consumer	632	690
Discrimination	60	19
Eminent Domain	12	12
Environmental	<b>3</b>	13
Family	2,705	2,837
Felony/Misdemeanor	692	677
Foreign Language	10	11
Immigration	20	18
Insurance	89	74
Labor Relations	562	584
Landlord/Tenant	334	360
Malpractice	202	154
Mining	14	1 <b>3</b>
Negligence	873	744
Patent/Copyright	157	134
Public Interest	<b>0</b>	0
Real Estate	706	585
SSI Cases	22	53
Tax	103	114
Traffic	117	65
Trust/Wills/Estates	285	254
Workers' Compensation	<u>273</u>	<u>304</u>
	8,862	8,620
	+ 3%	- 3%
	(Change from 1987)	(Change from 1988)

# VII. THE COMMITTEES OF THE ALASKA BAR

# A. The Bar Rule Committees

# 1. The Committee of Law Examiners

The President of the Alaska Bar appoints the thirty (30) members who comprise the Committee of Law Examiners. The terms are staggered, with each person serving for three years.

The Committee is charged with responsibility for preparing and grading the essay portion of the Alaska Bar Examination. Reports are made to the Board at least twice yearly with respect to the results of each examination. Included are a statistical analysis and any recommendations which the Committee might have with respect to the form and content of the examination. (See Part II of the Report for details concerning the Committee's annual work.)

The Committee consists of ten (10) members who draft the essay questions prior to the exam, and twenty (20) members who do the grading of answers after the exam. Carolyn E. Jones currently chairs this committee.

#### 2. The Disciplinary Hearing Committees

There are three area discipline divisions, one in the Third Judicial District, one in the First Judicial District, and one serving the combined Second and Fourth Judicial Districts. The current composition of the discipline divisions includes 10 attorneys and 2 non-attorney or public members in the First District; 8 attorneys and 3 public members in the combined Second and Fourth Districts; and 27 attorneys and 9 public members in the Third District. All serve three year terms which are staggered.

Three members constitute a quorum for a hearing committee. They may only act with the concurrence of a majority of the sitting members. One of those participating must be a public member. Members may be replaced by the President for good cause and they may not represent respondent attorneys during their term.

To insure the fairness of the disciplinary hearing process, committee members are prohibited from acting in matters where they are a party or directly interested, a material witness, related to a respondent by blood or affinity within the third degree, have been a lawyer for a respondent within two years of

the filing of the petition, or for any reason, cannot give a fair and impartial decision. The circumstances and procedures considered by the committee members are almost identical to those which a judge must follow in disqualifying himself in court proceedings.

The hearing committee has the power and duty to swear and examine witnesses and to issue subpoenas; at the conclusion of an evidentiary hearing, the committee may direct the submission of proposed findings, conclusions, recommendations and briefs. Thereafter, the committee is required to submit a written report to the Disciplinary Board, together with its findings, conclusions, recommendations, any briefs submitted, and the record.

Once the Board has acted on the Committee's recommendation, each participating member is advised of the Board's decision. (See also Part III of this Report.)

# 3. The Conciliation Panels

There are three conciliation panels serving the First, Third and combined Second and Fourth Judicial Districts. Each panel consists of members of the Alaska Bar appointed by the President and subject to ratification by the Board. They serve staggered three year terms.

The conciliation procedure was created to deal with disputes which do not involve ethical misconduct or fee disputes. The conciliator's function is to resolve such disputes between attorneys and their clients in an informal manner.

Although the procedure is informal, the failure of any attorney to participate in good faith in an effort to resolve a dispute submitted to conciliation may constitute independent grounds for disciplinary action.

If a resolution is reached, the Conciliator reduces it to writing for signature by all parties. In any event, the Conciliator submits a written report to Bar Counsel, including a summary of the dispute, its outcome, and the Conciliator's opinion as to the merits and good faith or lack thereto of the attorney party.

# 4. The Attorney Fee Review Committee

The Bar Association, under the Alaska Bar Rules, maintains an Attorney Fee Review Committee to settle fee disputes between

attorneys and clients where such disputes have not been determined by statute or court rule or decision. Five subcommittees residing in Ketchikan, Juneau, Anchorage, Kenai and Fairbanks comprise the Committee. Each subcommittee consists of a "pool" of attorney and non-attorney members. Each subcommittee member serves for three years. From these subcommittees, a panel of two attorneys and one non-attorney is convened to hear a fee dispute. If the amount in dispute is less than \$2000, a single panel member will hear the matter.

The client initiates a fee arbitration by filing a petition describing the dispute and the efforts made to resolve the matter directly with the attorney. If Bar Counsel finds that reasonable efforts have been made to resolve the problem directly with the attorney, and that the Association has jurisdiction over the dispute, the petition will be accepted. Notification is sent to the client and the attorney that they have ten days to settle the matter before it goes to the appropriate panel.

At the hearing, the parties can present both written and oral evidence. The panel has the ability to subpoena witnesses. If the client feels any member of the Committee cannot be fair and impartial, he or she may request that the member not participate in the hearing. For similar reasons, a member may disqualify himself or herself.

At the hearing, basic rights of due process are followed, with some relaxation of the rules of evidence. Any party may be called to testify. A decision must be rendered by the panel within thirty days after the close of a hearing. An appeal may be taken from the decision to the Superior Court.

Forms and booklets explaining the Fee Review Committee's processes and procedures are available in the Association's office and are provided to the clerks of court in every location in the State.

The Executive Committee of the Fee Dispute Resolution Program meets at least twice each year. An addition to Alaska Bar Rule 38(c), effective July 15, 1989, gave the Committee authority to refer apparent violations of Bar Rule 35 to Bar Counsel for disciplinary investigation, including instances in which attorneys have substantial numbers of fee arbitrations filed against them.

Changes to Alaska Bar Rules 39 and 40 were approved by the Board of Governors this year, and are pending adoption by the Supreme Court. The proposed amendments to Rule 39 would

clarify the notice requirements for attorneys filing lawsuits for fees, and the requirements for obtaining stays of such actions. The proposed change to Bar Rule 40 excepts normal functions of Bar Counsel from confidentiality restrictions.

An amendment to Bar Rule 34(c), under consideration by the Board, would include costs incurred by attorneys in the jurisdiction of the Fee Dispute Resolution program. At the request of the Board, based on a major dispute decided this year, the Executive Committee is developing rules for handling complex fee arbitrations.

Arbitrations	pending January 1, 1989 48
Arbitrations	<u>filed</u> during 1989 (+) 87
Arbitrations	<u>closed</u> in 1989 (-) 82
Arbitrations	pending January 1, 1990 53

# 5. The Client Security Fund Committee

The Bar Association maintains a fund for the purpose of making reimbursement to clients who have suffered non-insured losses of money, property, or other things of value as a result of dishonest conduct by attorneys. Dishonest conduct means acts of embezzlement, wrongful taking, or conversion of money, property, or other things of value. The monies of the Fund come from the membership of the Bar Association, as it is mandated that a portion of the annual dues paid by each member be deposited to the Fund.

A client makes a claim by filing an application for reimbursement with the office of the Alaska Bar Association. The client may not be a spouse, relative, partner, associate, employee or insurer of the lawyer, a surety or bonding agency, or a governmental entity or agency. The sworn application contains the name and address of the lawyer, the amount of the client's alleged loss, the dates of the loss and discovery of the loss, the name and address of the client, a statement as to the facts, an agreement that the client will be bound by the Alaska Bar Rules concerning the Fund, and a statement that the loss was not covered by insurance or bond.

A Client Security Fund Committee of six members is appointed by the President, subject to ratification by the

Board. Each member serves for three years, and the Chairperson is appointed by the President. When an application is filed, an attorney appointed to aid the Committee (Bar Counsel) will determine if, on its face, a legitimate claim for loss has been made. The claim will be denied only if both the appointed attorney and a majority of the Committee agree that the claim is not valid on its face. Otherwise, the claim goes to the Committee for a final hearing.

The Committee hears evidence, administers oaths, issues subpoenas and, with prior approval, hires experts to aid in its investigation. Because the technical rules of evidence are relaxed, the Committee may consider any previous disciplinary proceedings against the attorney, any criminal proceedings and any civil proceedings involving the lawyer. The determination of the Committee is advisory to the Board. The Board makes the final decision as to whether and how payment will be made.

The loss to be paid any one claimant is the <u>lesser</u> of (a) \$10,000 or (b) 10% of the Fund at the time the award is made. The total amount of all claims paid in one year shall not exceed 50% of the total amount in the Fund as of January 1 of that calendar year. The aggregate maximum amount which all claimants may recover arising from an instance or course of dishonest conduct of any one lawyer is \$50,000. A rule change has been approved by the Board of Governors and is pending adoption by the Supreme Court, which would raise the payment limit to an individual claimant to \$50,000, and the limit for course of conduct by one attorney to \$200,000.

Before funds are paid to the claimant, he or she must assign the amount of the claim to the Bar Association so that the Bar may legally sue the attorney for recovery of all amounts paid to the client from the Fund. If the Bar Association chooses to sue the lawyer on this assigned claim, it must give written notice of the suit to the claimant in case the claimant wishes to join such an action to recover any loss in excess of the amount awarded to the client from the Fund.

The Board of Governors approved payment of one claim in 1989. One other claim is pending before the Committee.

A proposed rule amendment sent to the Supreme Court for approval this year would change the name of the Client Security Fund to the Lawyers' Fund for Client Protection. Other rule changes, regarding notice requirements, are under consideration by the Board of Governors.

# 6. Admission Waiver Programs

The Bar Association has three admission waiver programs allowing students and attorneys in special job classifications to perform certain legal services within the State of Alaska. These include:

# a. Legal Intern Permit

An applicant for a legal intern permit files for a permit according to provisions set forth in the Bar Rules, stating that he is either 1) a student enrolled in an accredited law school who has completed one-half of his course work, 2) a graduate from an accredited law school who has never failed a bar examination or, 3) a law school graduate who has been admitted to another bar (so long as the person shows good standing has been maintained).

Once a permit is issued, the legal intern may do the following:

- Appear in any district or superior court proceeding, to the extent permitted by the judge, if the lawyer of the client is present and able to supervise and has filed the necessary form with the court and the Bar Association;
- 2. Appear in district court in a number of matters, both civil and criminal, without the supervising attorney present, provided the supervising attorney has filed a form and certifies the intern is competent, the client gives written consent, or a governmental body has granted approval, and the judge or magistrate agrees.

The permit is good until one of the following events occur:

- Six months have passed (the permit is renewable once for six more months);
- 2. The intern fails to take the first Alaska Bar Examination for which he or she is eligible;
- 3. The intern fails to pass any bar examination.

# b. Alaska Legal Service Corporation Waiver

A person employed by or associated with Alaska Legal Services Corporation may receive permission to practice law in Alaska, for not more than two years, if the attorney is admitted to practice law -- or is eligible to be admitted to practice law -- in another state, territory, or the District of Columbia, and has not failed the Alaska Bar Examination. The permission to practice shall be withdrawn if the person at any time fails the Alaska Bar Examination or leaves the services of the Alaska Legal Services Corporation. The permission is only good for representation of Legal Services clients, and the person is subject to the disciplinary rules of the Alaska Bar Association.

# c. <u>United States Armed Forces Expanded</u> <u>Legal Assistance Program</u>

A person who is an active duty member of the United States Armed Forces assigned to the Judge Advocate General Program, or the United States Coast Guard, may receive permission to practice law in Alaska for not more than two years if the attorney is admitted to practice -- or is eligible to be admitted to practice law -- in another state, territory or the District of Columbia, has graduated from an accredited law school, and has not failed the Alaska Bar Examination or does not leave military service.

#### B. The Substantive Law Sections

The Alaska Bar Association currently has 16 Substantive Law Sections or recognized groups of member attorneys with similar interests in a particular area of law.

The Sections for 1990 are listed below:

Administrative Law
Alaska Native Law
Bankruptcy Law
Business Law
Criminal Defense
Criminal Prosecution
Economics of Law Practice
Estate Planning/Probate Law
Environmental Law
Employment Law

Family Law
International Law
Natural Resources Law
Real Estate Law
Taxation Law
Torts Law

The 16 Substantive Law Sections provide a number of opportunities for professional growth and development through:

O An exchange of information among lawyers with similar legal interests.

o Continuing legal education programs.

o <u>Section News</u>, a monthly newsletter of section events and topics of interest.

Review of legislative and court actions.

o A forum to respond to the needs of the community and the profession.

Section membership is open to all active members of the Alaska Bar Association. \$5.00 of a member's bar dues is budgeted to the first section joined by a member. Members may join additional sections for \$10.00 per section. Non-bar members may join a section as a non-voting associate member for dues of \$10 per year per section. New and renewing section memberships are solicited each January by mail.

Each section is administered by an executive committee least five members who serve three-year composed of at The Chair of each section is elected by the staggered terms. The primary responsibilities of the section's membership. administer the section, executive committee are to 1) publish the annual professional update at each annual meeting, 3) present a CLE seminar at least once every 2 years, and 4) preside at the annual section meeting and election of activities committee members. Section executive coordinated by the Bar Assistant Director.

The sections are encouraged to assist the Continuing Legal Education Committee in the presentation of seminars and to submit articles in their fields of expertise to the Bar Rag and to Section News, the monthly section newsletter published by the Bar office. Ten of the sections have regularly scheduled monthly meetings at which members are briefed on important developments within their area of law, and members outside of Anchorage are encouraged to participate via teleconference. The remaining sections meet on an "as needed" basis depending on developments within their area of interest. Section chairs also routinely distribute information and case citations to members.

When appropriate, the sections are requested to advise the Board on substantive issues. While the sections cannot speak on behalf of the Alaska Bar Association without prior Board approval, several sections regularly monitor and testify concerning legislation both in Alaska and in Congress.

As of December 31, 1989, over 900 bar members were involved in one or more sections (an increase of 100 over 1988). Section activity has increased significantly in 1989. Ten sections now meet regularly and contribute to the newsletter such items as case citations and comment on legislation of particular interest. Most notably, in 1989, the International Law Section was begun, and a record number of sections participated in our expanded "Bridge-the-Gap" program of 2 days and contributed updates to the "Bridge-the-Gap" Manual. For the first time, the topics of "Criminal Defense," Criminal Prosecution," "Paralegal Profitability," "Collections and Executions," "Discovery," "Fast Track Rule," "Professional Conduct for the Non-Attorney," and "Tort Claims" were included in the Manual. At the 1989 Annual Convention in Juneau, 10 Sections met for their annual meeting and review of updates.

# C. The Standing Committees

# 1. Bar Polls and Elections Committee

The function of this nine member committee is to prepare, at the direction of the Board, polls of the membership on any given number of subjects, e.g., the evaluation of persons seeking judicial appointments. In addition to formulation of requested polls, the Committee compiles the results of the poll and presents them to the Board.

The other major responsibility of the Committee is to tabulate the results of the yearly elections to membership on the Board of Governors and the Alaska Legal Services Corporation Board of Directors. In addition, it conducts advisory opinion polls for use by the Board in its appointment of lawyer representatives to the Judicial Council, Judicial Conduct Commission, Ninth Circuit Judicial Conference and the ABA Delegate. Maryann E. Foley currently chairs this committee.

# 2. The Continuing Legal Education Committee

One of the most vital committees of the Alaska Bar is the Continuing Legal Education (CLE) Committee, which is responsible for presenting substantive education programs in

order to keep Alaskan lawyers abreast of new developments in the law. The Committee is currently chaired by Raymond M. Funk. (See Part IV of this Report.)

# 3. Ethics Committee

Chaired by Kenneth P. Jacobus, the Ethics Committee issues opinions, based on actual circumstances but phrased in hypothetical terms, in order to give guidance to Association members in complying with the Code of Professional Responsibility.

An opinion may be requested by a member in good standing who is concerned about proposed conduct. The Ethics Committee then decides whether the matter may be resolved by issuing an informal opinion or by preparing a formal opinion for consideration by the Board of Governors. Only the Board may issue and publish formal opinions. If a formal opinion is adopted, it is published in the Bar Rag, and circulated to all law libraries. Copies of individual Ethics Opinions are available from the Bar office and a complete set of Ethics Opinions is available in the office for review. The Board is also publishing complete sets of the Ethics Opinions for purchase.

Additionally, Bar Counsel may give informal ethics advice to practitioners who request assistance. The number of attorneys requesting this assistance continues to steadily increase. The availability of this service has helped practitioners become aware of ethical problems and thus avoid those problems in their day to day activities.

#### 4. Historians of the Alaska Bar

As one of the most unique bar associations, populated through the years by many colorful individuals, it was determined that before the incidents and events become lost, a group would be created to preserve the history of the Alaska Bar. Madeline R. "Loni" Levy chaired this committee in 1989.

# 5. Law Related Education Committee

The purpose of this committee is to present programs to the community and school system which will aid in an understanding of the law and the legal system. The Committee is currently chaired by Philip R. Volland.

Bylaw VII, section (a)(5) was amended to divide the committee into subcommittees in the different communities to reflect the involvement of the lawyers with the local school districts.

# a. Bar-School Partnership Program

As part of the continuing Bar-School partnership established in various communities in Alaska as the result of a grant from the American Bar Association, an orientation and training session was held in October for lawyers and teachers from Anchorage, Kenai, Mat-su, Juneau and Fairbanks. The participants were shown teaching techniques and ideas, and methods for getting students involved in discussing and analyzing ideas.

The different communities have formed lawyer-teacher committees aimed at teaching students about the law, getting lawyers into the classroom and to otherwise act as resources for teachers. In Anchorage and Juneau, the committees developed credit courses for teachers which covered different substantive and procedural areas of the law each week over the semester. The Anchorage course was being held for the second year, with over 30 lawyers comprising the faculty and 100 teachers enrolled in the course.

#### 6. Statutes, Bylaws and Rules Committee

This standing committee of twelve persons is charged with responsibility for drafting proposed revisions of the statutues, bylaws, and rules which govern the Alaska Bar. The Board of Governors requests such proposals when it discovers an area that needs clarification or when new guidelines need to be adopted.

# D. Special Committees

#### 1. Model Rules Committee

In its August 1983 meeting, the House of Delegates of the American Bar Association adopted a comprehensive re-codification of the code governing a lawyer's conduct. Known as the Model Rules of Professional Conduct, this new statement of ethical requirements provides a clearer statement of a lawyer's responsibility to clients, the courts and the American legal system. The Model Rules have been adopted by a number of states.

The Board of Governors established an eight person study committee. The committee began regular work sessions in 1985 and presented comprehensive proposals and commentary in 1987 on the Model Rules for the review by the Board of Governors. The Board in turn, appointed a subcommittee of the Board of Governors to review the proposals and make recommendations to the Board. In the fall of 1988, the Board and the Committee started holding joint work sessions at each Board meeting to discuss and vote on the more controversial rules before adopting the rules for publication.

In 1989, the Board completed its study and published its proposals in the <u>Bar Rag</u> for comment by the membership. In October, the Board took final action to send the proposed rules to the Supreme Court. During this last stage of review by the Court, the Board anticipates working with the Court and its staff on the final wording of the various provisions.

# 2. Substance Abuse Committee

John Abbott chairs this committee which put together a program to assist lawyers who have problems with alcohol or drug abuse. Volunteer attorneys will review cases forwarded to the committee by any referring authority, will provide counselling or information to any person inquiring about the identification and availability of substance abuse programs, and perform interventions upon request by persons having a relationship with a substance abusing attorney.

#### 3. Tutoring Committee

This committee consists of a pool of former law examiners, and other attorneys who have had experience in tutoring applicants to take the Alaska bar exam. Orientation and training material is provided to prospective tutors on how to tutor an applicant. Emphasis is placed on how to write essay exams, rather than substantive law.

Any applicant who has failed a bar exam may request tutoring assistance, which will be provided at no cost to the applicant. Twenty-three applicants requested tutoring assistance in 1989.

#### VIII. MEMBERSHIP SERVICES

# A. ALPS (Attorney Liability Protection Society)

The Alaska Bar Association is a member of a Multi-state lawyer-owned insurance company. Alaska joins in this endeavor with states including Delaware, Idaho, Kansas, Montana, Nevada, North Dakota, South Dakota, West Virginia and Wyoming. A corporation called Attorney's Liability Protection Sociedy (ALPS) has been created to handle the formation functions. The ultimate goal is to increase the availability of coverage to Alaska lawyers at rates that are predictable and which avoid wild fluctuations based on policies and practices over which the lawyers have no control. Michael A. Thompson serves as Alaska's director on the ALPS Board of Directors. ALPS began issuing policies in spring of 1988.

In order to be eligible for coverage by the company, Alaskan lawyers are required to contribute \$2,200 as their capital share. Rates will be computed for each participating state based upon the claims experience in that state.

# B. LEXIS

The Bar Association sponsors a group program to provide members with access to LEXIS, a computer-assisted legal research service offered by Mead Data Central, (MDC). Participating firms pay a \$25.00 monthly subscription fee. Additionally, all members' use of LEXIS aggregates to take advantage of volume discounts.

# C. Group Insurance

The Bar Association sponsors a life insurance program for Bar members with Continental Insurance Company and its subsidiary, Loyalty Life. All members of the Association and employees of their firms are eligible. Unlike the previous life insurance program, the Bar staff does not administer the plan.

The Bar Association also sponsors a group medical program. Medical, dental, vision, life and disability coverage are available to firms ranging in size from sole practitioners to over one hundred employees. The plan is underwritten by Blue Cross of Washington and Alaska.

The Bar Association sponsors a group Disability Insurance program offered by Crown Life Insurance Company.

# D. The Alaska Bar Rag

The official publication of the Bar Association is the Alaska Bar Rag, which is published bi-monthly. The editor is Ralph R. Beistline.

# E. Section News

This newsletter, which is compiled by the Assistant Director, is printed monthly and goes to all members of all of the substantive law sections. It contains notices of section meetings, CLE seminars, and information on new case law.

# F. Membership Directory

In August 1989, the Association distributed to all active members, at no charge, a membership directory of all members of the Association. The directory was broken down by judicial district, member status, and also listed the state judges. The Board of Governors' intention was to print and distribute this directory every year. Before printing again however, the Board directed that a survey be conducted of all active members, asking whether they think the Association should continue to print and distribute the directory, at no charge to the members.

# G. Ethics Opinions

The Board of Governors directed that the ethics opinions be printed and available in 3 ring binders for sale to members. Preorders were taken and due by the end of the year so that sets of opinions would only be printed for the orders taken.

# H. Copying Machines in the Law Library

In October, the Alaska Court System gave notice to the Anchorage Bar Association that it was terminating its agreement with them to provide copying services in the Anchorage Law Library. The court system approached the Board of Governors to

make a proposal for a cooperative agreement for similar services. The court's proposal was that the Alaska Bar Association establish service agreements with local bar associations for the purpose of providing copiers in the Alaska Court Libraries for the use of all library patrons. The Board directed the vice-president and the executive director to negotiate the contracts with the court system and the local bar association.

# IX. ADJUNCT INVOLVEMENT

# A. The Alaska Bar Foundation

In October, 1972, the Board of Governors established the Alaska Bar Foundation for the purpose of fostering and maintaining the honor and integrity of the profession, improving and facilitating the administration of justice, promoting the study of law and continuing legal education, administering loans and scholarships, and maintaining a law library and research center.

The Foundation was established, pursuant to Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as a Not for Profit Corporation, and was incorporated in accordance with the laws of the State of Alaska.

The current Board of Trustees consists of Mary K. Hughes, Winston S. Burbank, John M. Conway, William B. Rozell and Sandra K. Saville.

The Foundation was originally supported by individual contributions. Since 1985, the dues notices have provided for a voluntary dues add-on contribution of \$9.00 to the Foundation. The voluntary add-on was requested in hopes of strengthening the Foundation's assets so that a sizeable fund could be developed over a period of time to be used for law-related education projects, community service programs and scholarships.

The Foundation currently has an active scholarship program. In 1989 seven scholarships were awarded: One \$2,000 scholarship, five in the amount of \$1,000, and one \$500 scholarship.

#### 1. IOLTA

The Alaska Supreme Court adopted amendments to DR 9-102 in 1986, effective March 15, 1987, establishing a voluntary IOLTA (Interest on Lawyers Trust Accounts) program for the state of Alaska. Beginning March 15, 1987, lawyers may place client trust money, previously held in co-mingled, noninterest-bearing checking accounts, into interest-bearing accounts. Included are those client funds which are expected to be held for such a short duration or which are so small in amount that they could not as a practical matter produce interest for the client if held in a separate interest-bearing account. Funds which reasonably may be expected to generate in excess of \$100 interest to the client may not be deposited in an IOLTA account.

The interest earned on each account is paid periodically to the Alaska Bar Foundation. Designated by the Alaska Supreme Court as the organization to administer the IOLTA program, the Foundation will use the interest income to make grants to non-profit providers of legal services to the poor.

On March 30, 1989, the Alaska Supreme Court amended DR 9-102 which converted the IOLTA voluntary program to an opt-out program. This rule, effective July 15, 1989 provides that unless an election not to participate is submitted in accordance with the procedures outlined in the rule, a lawyer or law firm shall establish an IOLTA account. The rule stated that the lawyer or law firm shall make the election on or before September 1, 1989 on a Notice of Election form provided by the Alaska Bar Association. If the Notice of Election is not submitted, the lawyer or law firm shall maintain the IOLTA account. The election can be changed at any time by notifying the Alaska Bar Association.

Notice of Election forms went out to all members in early August. The opt-out program resulted in a 39% increase in participating firms. In May there were 88 firms signed up with the IOLTA program. By the end of 1989, there were 122 firms participating in the program. The monthly income for the IOLTA program has increased from \$8,008 in May to \$14,405 in December. Total income for 1989 was \$106,912.

The Foundation solicited Requests for Proposals for the distribution of grants. In 1989, a \$50,000 grant was made to the Alaska Pro Bono Program.

#### B. The Alaska Law Review

The Alaska Bar publishes, semi-annually, for the benefit of its members and at no additional cost, the <u>Alaska Law Review</u>. Strong emphasis is placed on topics related to the laws of Alaska and contributions to the <u>Review</u> by members of the Bar are actively solicited.

The <u>Alaska Law Review</u> is edited by law students at Duke University School of Law in Durham, North Carolina, and includes articles by practicing attorneys, law professors, and notes and comments by Duke law students. The Alaska Bar Association and Duke Law School renewed a 3 year contract to continue publication of the <u>Alaska Law Review</u> until December, 1992.

In March, eight law students on the <u>Review</u> visited Alaska for a week to make contact with attorneys here and to gain a better insight into our state. They were hosted by local attorneys and firms, both in homes and at receptions.

# C. Alaska Legal Services Corporation

Nine attorneys serve on the Board of Directors of Alaska Legal Services Corporation (ALSC), two from the First Judicial District, one from the Second Judicial District, three from the Third Judicial District, and one from the Fourth Judicial District. Each serves for a term of three years. The ninth attorney on the Board of Directors is the President of the Alaska Bar (or his/her designee). In addition, there are nine alternate members who serve when a regular attorney member is unable to do so. The attorney members are appointed by the Board of Governors after an advisory poll of the Bar membership is conducted.

The ALSC Board of Directors carries out the purpose of the Corporation, which is to provide legal assistance to persons lacking the financial capability to obtain private counsel. It meets at least four times a year and supervises the staff.

# D. Alaska Code Revision Commission

The Alaska Code Revision Commission was established in 1976 to review and recommend revisions to the laws of Alaska. The Board of Governors appointed one attorney, Mary K. Hughes, to the Commission.

# E. Alaska Commission on Judicial Conduct

Three attorney members who have practiced law in the State for at least ten years are appointed to the Alaska Commission on Judicial Conduct by the Governor from a list of recommendations submitted by the Board of Governors. These appointments are subject to legislative confirmation. The attorney members in 1989 were Patrick T. Brown, James L. Hanley and Vincent P. Vitale.

The Commission has the power to investigate malfeasence or misfeasence on the part of a member of the judiciary, and to recommend to the Supreme Court impeachment, suspension, removal from office, retirement or censure.

# F. American Bar Association

Each state bar association has one representative in the House of Delegates of the American Bar Association. The delegate is elected by the active members of the Alaska Bar to serve a two year term. Alaska's current representative is Donna C. Willard.

Her function is to represent the views of the Alaska Bar on all matters which come before the House of Delegates for consideration.

# G. Judicial Council

Three attorneys serve staggered six year terms on the Judicial Council. The Council's purpose is to recommend candidates for judicial office and to conduct studies for the improvement of the administration of justice in Alaska.

The attorney members are appointed by the Board of Governors after nominating petitions have been circulated and advisory polls conducted. In 1989, Daniel L. Callahan, William T. Council and James D. Gilmore served as the attorney members.

#### H. National Conference of Bar Presidents

At the time of their election to office, the President and President Elect of the Alaska Bar become members of the National Conference of Bar Presidents, which meets twice a year in conjuction with the meetings of the American Bar Association. In addition, all past Presidents of the Alaska Bar are members.

Its purpose is to educate and train bar leaders, to keep them abreast of current events, to improve the quality of delivery of legal services, and to improve the administration of justice.

# I. Ninth Circuit Judicial Conference

The Ninth Circuit Judicial Conference was established by the Judicial Council of the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals to consider the business of the courts in the circuit, advise means of improving the administration of justice, and implement decisions regarding the administration of the federal courts.

All the judges in the Ninth Circuit, the president of each state bar association, the United States Attorney, Magistrates, law school representatives, and private practitioners comprise its membership.

In addition to the President of the Bar, Alaska has lawyer representatives who are appointed by the presiding judge of the Federal Court in Alaska to serve three year terms. The Bar Association participates in the selection of these attorney members by soliciting nominations, conducting an advisory poll, and recommending to the Chief Judge lawyers for each vacancy. At the end of 1989, the representatives were Robert C. Bundy, Lewis F. Gordon, R. Collin Middleton and Millard F. Ingraham. R. Everett Harris was appointed as Special Representative of the Alaska Bar Association to assist with planning for the 9th Circuit Judicial Conference to take place in Anchorage in June 1990.

The lawyer representatives serve without compensation and without reimbursement for expenses.

# J. Rocky Mountain Mineral Law Foundation

The Rocky Mountain Mineral Law Foundation, one of the preeminent natural resource organizations in the United States, sponsors continuing legal education programs, publishes books and treatises, provides scholarships and, in general, encourages development of natural resources law.

Its Board of Trustees is comprised of law school representatives, private practitioners, and one appointee from each bar association in the Western states. Joseph J. Perkins, Jr., the Alaska Bar's current representative, serves at the pleasure of the Board of Governors.

# K. Western States Bar Conference

Fifteen (15) states are members of the Western States Bar Conference. The conference meets once a year to share the ideas and experiences of the member state bar associations.

The president and president elect of each state bar, as well as all past presidents, are members of the Conference.

#### X. BUDGET

Appendix 3 contains the year end monthly report on the 1989 income and expense budget for the Association. The 1989 report reflects a total revenue of \$1,209,694 with total expenses of \$1,242,254 for a net loss of \$32,560.

Originally, the Bar Association was budgeted for a \$130,624 loss in 1989, with projected income of \$1,146,877 and expenses of \$1,277,501. Generally, projected income is budgeted conservatively, while expenses are budgeted for "worse case scenario." This year our expenses ran at 97% of budget, while income came in at 1.05% over budget.

Several factors contributed to the budget deficit this year. Admissions income was down slightly, while expenses were up. Printing costs for the Board of Governors elections were higher than normal due to the exceptionally large number of candidates running for a greater number of vacancies on the Board. Also contributing to higher printing and postage costs were two polls conducted this year, for the U.S. District Court judge vacancy, and the U.S. Bankruptcy judge position. Unbudgeted expenses included the \$4,000 contribution to conduct a Membership survey of the members of the Bar Association, in conjunction with the Alaska Judicial Council, as well as \$15,000 to print and distribute the membership directory.

The Association is continuing to pay off a \$167,000 loan taken out to purchase the new computer system, consisting of a WANG VS6E and Focus software. All staff now have a computer terminal on their desk, which, even though only word processing and "Office" messaging functions are currently operational, have made the office function more efficiently. The controller is working, along with part-time contract programmer assistance, to design and code the data processing programs, with a target date of completion the summer of 1990.

# Appendix 1



Carolyn Jones 1031 W. 4th Avenue, Suite 200 Anchorage, AK 99501 May 31, 1989

Larry R. Weeks President, Board of Governors Alaska Bar Association Post Office Box 100279 Anchorage, AK 99510

Dear Mr. Weeks:

This letter is written pursuant to Section 3 of Rule 4 of the Alaska Bar Rules and constitutes certification of the results of the Alaska Bar Examination given February 21, 22 and 23, 1989. Attached is a copy of the Bar Examination essay questions, the guides utilized by the graders of those questions, and the essays selected as "benchmarks" (i.e., those essays representative of each of the five possible points on the grading scale for each of the ten essays). A copy of the Multistate Bar Examination (MBE) is not included for your review. This letter shall constitute the written report of the Committee of Law Examiners pursuant to Rule 4.

A total of 56 applicants participated in the February, 1989 Bar Examination. The performance of each examinee is also attached.

The examination consisted of three parts. The first day of the examination consisted of three "long" essay questions given in the morning and six "short" essay questions which were given in the afternoon. The research/analysis portion of the examination consisted of one essay question given on the morning of the third day. The MBE, a multiple-choice examination, was given on the second day of the examination.

In accordance with Alaska Bar Rule 4, Section 6, the Committee submitted the weighted, standardized essay scores of the applicants to the National Conference of Bar Examiners for combining with the MBE scores.

The components of the exam were weighted as follows: Essay portion, 50%; MBE, 50%; with the essay portion sub-weighted as follows: the three long essays, 30%; the six short essays, 45%; the research/analysis question, 25%. A combined score of 140 or above was passing.

The Committee read the essay and research answers during the months of March and April, 1988. The results of the February, 1989 examination were certified by the Committee today, May 31, 1989, after the evaluation was completed and the statistics were compiled.

Of the 56 applicants, 36 (65%) received a combined score of 140 or greater. Subject to other eligibility requirements contained in the Alaska Bar Rules, the Committee recommends to the Board of Governors that the 36 applicants achieving passing scores on the February, 1989 Alaska Bar Examination be certified to the Alaska Supreme Court for membership in the Bar and admission to the practice of law in Alaska.

Respectfully submitted,

COMMITTEE OF LAW EXAMINERS

Carolyn Jones

Chair

Ϋu

aform188

Report Date: 89/05/26 2/89 EXAM PASS/FAIL RESULTS 'ass/Fail Results 4 8 12 16 20 24 28 32 36 Ε Ε 455 נ נ î, ... **E** ^ С Ε C. [ C ^----^----: of occurrences 4 8 12 16 20 24 28 32 36 40

GENDER VS./ PASS-FAIL RESULT  4 8 12 16 20 24 28 32 36 4  ↑↑↑↑↑↑↑↑	= O 1 E E
	)
+	 
	[ [ [
Fevel. (17)[####################################	L E
Female (17)[################## [ ] [ [ [ ] [ ] [ ]	
و على الله الله الله الله الله الله الله ال	Ē
Pass (9)E######## [ [ [ [ [ [	L. E
	Ε.
Male (39)[####################################	<u> </u>
المارة	E
	Ľ
Pass (27)[############################ [ [ [	Ε
	Ľ
# of occurrence 4 8 12 16 20 24 28 32 36 4	1

		FEE	RU	<b>⊃</b> F?`	<b>Y</b>	198	39					
10. OF TIMES TAKEN/		-ATI 01							· :	====	==	
10: OF TIMES TAKENY	FA55-1	-AIL R	4			16				32	36	40
			C	٢	С	↑	Ĺ		ξ	1 [	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
157 Time taken	( 33	3)[###1 [	‡#### [	#### [	####	##### r	##### C	+#### 7	<b>###</b> ##	#####	[	E
	( 8	3)[####	+####	<b>#</b>	֖֖֖֝֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞	<u>.</u>	Ē	<u>ר</u>	נ	[	C	E
ass	( 2	[ 5)[####	[ +####	[  +####	_ 	] 	C +####	[ +####	[	נ	E	[
	=====	[ =====:	[ =====	[	[	C	[			Ċ	Č	Ē
Zup time	( 16	o)[####			####		ַ ב		[	-==== [	[	= = = E
ail	( 8	] 3)[###		[ ‡#		[ [	[ [	ב ב	[	[		· E
ass	( 8	] 3)[####	_	[ ±#	. [ [	נ	[	[	[	[	Ę	ַ
		С	C .	С	ξ	Č	Ē	<u> </u>	. <b>C</b>	[	Ē	C
3rd time	( 4	====== {	:==== <b>:</b> #	[	[		:===: [	===== ]	====:	===== [		====
all sections and the section of the	(	] 2)[##	[ [	[	[	[ [	[ [	[ [	[	[	ב ר	ר ב
ASS	, :	[ 2)[##		<u>ר</u>	֚֚֚֚֚֝֝֡֝֝֝	ַ	Ę	رَ	Ē	Ē	č	<u></u> בַ
w,2	` .	[	Č	Ē	Ĺ	[	Ē	L L	ָ בּ			E E
5th time	=====	===== L)[#	=====	==== [	===: [	===== [	:===: [	===== [	:===: [	= = = = :: [	 	====
المناه	, ,	[ L)[#	[	<u> </u>	<u></u>	<u>.</u>	Ē	Ē	č	Ē	Ē	Ċ
		[	[	E. ,	[	[	[	C F	ַנֻ בּרַ	L E	[ [	[
6th time		====== L)[#	:==== [	:==== [	[	===== [	====: ]	:===== [	:===: [	===== [	====: [	====
A\$\$	· ( 1	[ [)[#	[ [	[ [	ׅׅׅׅׅׅׅׅׅ֝֝֝֝֝֝֝֝֝֝֝֝֝֩	[	[ ר		E .	Ľ,	[	e Ç
	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	C	Č	Ē	Č	Ē	֝֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֞֜֞֞֜֓֞֞֜֞֜֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֓֡	Č	Ē	Ĺ	Ĺ	E
8th time			-	[	====	===== [	===== [	:==== [	====: ]	:==== [	===== [	====
منا		[ L)[#		C C	[ [	C C	֖֝֝֝֝֝ ֪֪֪֞֞֞	נ	ר ב	[ 	r E	Ę
		<u>֡</u>	<b>C</b>	[	<u>.</u>	[	ξ	<u>כ</u>	Ē	ξ	[	<u>.</u> [
		L ↑	·↑	[ ↑	_ -^		^_		[ ·↑			↑
of occurrence		. '	4	8	12	16	20	24	28	32	36	40

	= = = = FE	BRUAR	 Y 19	==== 89		====	<u> </u>
LAW SCHOOL VS./ PASS-F	==== AIL RESU	. = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =					<b>=</b> = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =
		1 2	3 4	5 <u>↑</u>	6 7 -↑↑-	<u>↑</u>	9 13
Case Western Reserve	( 1)[## ( 1)[##					[ [	
Columbia University	( 1)[## ( 1)[##		====== ]	======= ( C	======= C C	 [ [	===== C
Franklin Pierce Law	======= ( 1)[## ( 1)[##	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	====== 0 0 1 0	======= [ C	====== [	<b>C</b> C	
Georgetown University	 ++ ( 1)[#+		 ) ) ,	======= [ [	======= [	=======================================	
Gonzaga University	++1)(2) ++1)(1)	========= +####### +###		=======================================		======================================	===== [
р ====================================	( 1)[##	#### [ :========:	j j =======		( ( =======	[	
Harvard University P		\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\	·-	[ [ =======	[ [ [ [	[ [ =======	
Lewis & Clark College F	(2)[## (1)[## (1)[##			[ [		[ [	ם ב ב ב
Northwestern University	======	:======= +###		======= [	======= [ [		
Santa Clara University	( 3)[##	:======:: +#############################	1112 - 1	=====: [	======= [		
P	+#3(5)	‡###### ========	] ] ] ] ========	[ =======	[ [ =======	[	
Southern Illinois P	( 1)[## ( 1)[##		) ) ) )		[ [ [ [	C C	
State University of F New York at Buffalo	( 1)[## ( 1)[##	+### C +### C	C C	C C	C C	С С	C C
Syracuse College of سما	( 1)[## ( 1)[##		C C	<u> </u>	C C	<u> </u>	C C
Touro College School of	( 1)E##		C C	 [ 	 C C	 [ [	===== C
Tulane University P	( 1)[## ( 1)[##	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	 C C	======= [ [	====== [	 C C	===== C
# of occurrence	C ↑		C C ↑↑ 3 4		[ [ -↑↑- 6 7	[ ↑ 8	[
m or occurrence		Page	1 1		· /	•	7 <b></b>

========	=======		======		
	FEBRU4	ARY 1989	? = = = = = =	<b>=</b> = = = =	
LAW SCHOOL VS./ PASS-F	AIL RESULT				
	1	2 3 4 11	5		1.0
	<u> </u>		Ċ Ċ	<b>.</b> .	
University of California	<b>~</b> ( 3)[##########	========== ###### [	=======================================	##==##===: [	<b>**</b> ====
P Hastings	####### ==============================	###### [	<u></u> כ		
University of Dayton	( 1)[#####	[ [			:
	( 1)[##### ================================		[ [		
University of Denver			С С		:
<b>P</b>	( 1)[##### ( 1)[#####				
University of Iowa			========	=======:	=====
P	( 1)[##### ( 1)[#####				
University of Miami	======================================	=======================================	=========	=======================================	
P	( 1)[#####		נ נ		
=======================================	=======================================	=======================================	========	=======================================	=====
University of Michigan		ַר בַּיּבְיּבְיּבְיּבְיּבְיּבְיּבְיּבְיּבְיּב	נ נ נ נ	[ ~[	
=======================================	=======================================	==========	=========	=========	
University of New F	( 1) [##### ( 1) [#####				
=======================================	=======================================	==========	========	=========	
University of Oklahome	( 1)[#####	C			ב כ כ
University of Oregon	 (´5)[#########	*******	======== ##	=======================================	=====
E al la jain and a la jain	( 1)[#####		· · · ·		
P ====================================	( 4)[########	######### 	C C	<u> </u>	ם כ
	(8)[#########			 ######	•==== [ [
F Sound	( 5)[######### ( 3)[####################################	############## ******	-		
=======================================	=======================================	=============	========		[ ======
University of Tennessee	2 ( 1)[##### ( 1)[#####			נונון נונון	ם ב כ
	=======================================			=========	
University of Texas P	( 1) E#### ( 1) E#####			C	: ( : (
University of Wyomina			<b>6288</b>	======================================	
University of Wyoming	( 1) [ #####		ָר רָּ		. L
University of Minnesota	( 1)[#####	========= [		=======================================	
- The state of the					. [ . [
# of occurrence	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	↑↑ 2 3 4	-^ 5 6	<b>↑</b> -↑ <i>1</i> 7 8 9	? 10

	FEBRUARY 1	989 	
LAW SCHOOL VS./ PASS-FAIL	RESULT 1 2 3	4 5 6	7 8 9 10
	ΛΛΛΛ C		
Western State College ( 1 F ( 1	) C #####	C C C	
Whittier College School ( 1 P هم المس ( 1			
if the section $\sigma_{ij}$ ( )	) C ###################################		
William Mitchell College ( 1 P of اسما 4 ا	) C #####	C C C C	
# of occurrence	1 2 3	4 5 6	7 8 9 10



Carolyn Jones 1031 W. 4th Avenue, Suite 200 Anchorage, AK 99501 October 17, 1989

Jeffrey M. Feldman President, Board of Governors Alaska Bar Association Post Office Box 100279 Anchorage, AK 99510

Dear Mr. Feldman:

This letter is written pursuant to Section 3 of Rule 4 of the Alaska Bar Rules and constitutes certification of the results of the Alaska Bar Examination given July 25, 26 and 27, 1989. Attached is a copy of the Bar Examination essay questions, the guides utilized by the graders of those questions, and the essays selected as "benchmarks" (i.e., those essays representative of each of the five possible points on the grading scale for each of the ten essays). A copy of the Multistate Bar Examination (MBE) is not included for your review. This letter shall constitute the written report of the Committee of Law Examiners pursuant to Rule 4.

A total of 81 applicants participated in the July, 1989 Bar Examination. The performance of each examinee is also attached.

The examination consisted of three parts. The first day of the examination consisted of three "long" essay questions given in the morning and six "short" essay questions which were given in the afternoon. The research/analysis portion of the examination consisted of one essay question given on the morning of the third day. The MBE, a multiple-choice examination, was given on the second day of the examination.

In accordance with Alaska Bar Rule 4, Section 6, the Committee submitted the weighted, standardized essay scores of the applicants to the National Conference of Bar Examiners for combining with the MBE scores.

The components of the exam were weighted as follows: Essay portion, 50%; MBE, 50%; with the essay portion sub-weighted as follows: the three long essays, 30%; the six short essays, 45%; the research/analysis question, 25%. A combined score of 140 or above was passing.

The Committee read the essay and research answers during the months of August and September, 1989. The results of the July, 1989 examination were certified by the Committee today, October 17, 1989, after the evaluation was completed and the statistics were compiled.

Of the 81 applicants, 50 (62%) received a combined score of 140 or greater. Subject to other eligibility requirements contained in the Alaska Bar Rules, the Committee recommends to the Board of Governors that the 50 applicants achieving passing scores on the July, 1989 Alaska Bar Examination be certified to the Alaska Supreme Court for membership in the Bar and admission to the practice of law in Alaska.

Respectfully submitted,

COMMITTEE OF LAW EXAMINERS

Carolyn Jones

**C**hair

vu

aform188

		·	<u> </u>		Kep	ort D	ate: 8	9/10/	11		
=====		JU	フレイ	1	789	= = = ?		_ = =	: == == :		<del>=</del> ===
							===	_ = =	===:	===	==
Pass/Fail Results				•	5. v						
		5			5 2				40	45	50
	1	↑↑ [	1 [	\1 : I	N−−− <i>∙</i> [	↑ [	↑↑ Г г	↑. г	^ 	↑-·	†
Pass	( 50)	#####	####	#####	+####	####	######	#####	+####	#####	###[
Fail	(31)[	[   #####	] ±####	!####	[ *####	[ #####	[ ######		ַ	[	[
	(	ם ב	(		[		[ [	F [	Ĺ		[
		[	[					[	Ľ	7 11 <b>C</b> . 1	Ĺ
# of occurrences		5	10	) 15	r	↑ n ⊃'	T↑ 5 3Λ	·^	<b>↑</b>	/ //=	

Report Date: 89/10/11 JULY 1989 Gender vs./ Pass/Fail Result 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 Male Ε Ε Pass [ [ - [ Fail [ ٠ [ ſ Ε Page C C C [ Ľ C Ε C Fail ( 16) C ################ C C C C C [ · c Ε c c Ľ Ε Ē נ נ [ 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 # of occurrence

Report Date: 89/10/11 JULY 1989 NO. OF TIMES TAKEN/ PASS/FAIL RESULT 21 28 35 42 • [ [ Γ 1st time taken Ε . . Ε Ε Fill ( 16)[########### Ε. [ Pass ( 46)[################################## [ [ Ε 5)[### [ [ ב כ ζ Ę C. C C [ -Fail 4)[## [ C E Έ Ε ... C Para 1)[# [ [ С Г 3 rd time (8)[###### - [ Ε / **C** ٢ • Г E Fail 5)[### [ Γ [ - E [ Г **.** [ Pass 3)[## Γ Ε -a [ ○ < [.</p> Е 3)[## Ē Ε. E. Г Fail 3)[## E [ -\* ( 1)E# Ε ٢ . [ C \_\_[ C [ Г المنم 1)[# Г [ Ε [ [ , Γ BTH time ( 1)[# E **T** Ľ [ C ≥ **[**] Г E Fail ( 1) [# Ľ ٦Ē Ε . [ C Ε **C** [ 10 m time 1)[# Ľ [ [ Е [ C Fail 1)[# [ Ľ. Ε Ε .[

14

21

of occurrence

Г

Ε

35

56

√ 63

70

Report Date: 89/10/11

			ال ===	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	989	₹						<del>-</del>
LAW SCHOOL vs./ PASS-	FAIL	. RES									<u></u>		
		<b>^</b>	<u>1</u>	:	4 ↑	ś ↑	<u> ب</u>	0 1 †	2 1 ↑	4 1 1	si i		<u>?</u> ⊒ <b>^</b>
Case Western Reserve		1)[; 1)[;				[ [ ]	[ [ [	C C	C C	[ [ [	T. E.	5 / / 5 / / 6	: : :
Cornell Law School F P		2)[# 1)[# 1)[#					E C	E C C	[ [	[ [ [	[ [	E C	
George Washington		1)[‡ 1)[‡		•			T 1	===== [ [	===== [ [ =====	==== E C	==== [ 	[ ]	: = [ [
Georgetown University F		1)[# 1)[#			[		[	[ [	[ [	<b>C</b>	 C C	c C	ָ ֪֖֖֖֖֭֞֝
Gonzaga University			= = = =   # # # #   # # # #		:===: (				==== C C	_	===== [ [	#==== [ [	: <del>:</del> :
Harvard University P		1)[# 1)[#			: [	[			==== [ [	==== [ [	= = = = = C C	===== [ [	Ε Ε
Hastings College of P		==== 1)[# 1)[#		==== ] ]		: <b>= =</b> = : : : [		==== [ [	==== [ [	==== C C	==== [ (	===== [ [	E E
Indiana University	(	1 ) [ # 1 ) [ #		(		[		: C C:	<b></b> [	= = = = : C C	===== [ [	== = = = [ [	:= [ [
Lewis Clark College F P	(	1)[#	: #### :#### :####	===== ## [ C	:===== C C				**=== [ [ ]	==== C   C	==== [ [ :	===== C C	:= : [ [
Marquette University P		 1)[# 1)[#		==== ] ]	===== ] ]			==== C (	==== : [	====: [	==== : : [	===== [ [	: ## [ [
O.W. Coburn School F	(	==== 1)[# 1)[#	# [	= = = = ] ] 	==== ] ]	===== [ ]		====: [		===== [ [	==== [	==== [ [	= [ [
Santa Clara University	(	1)[# 1)[#	# [ # [	<u>ר</u>		C C		C (			:	==== [ [	= [ [
State University of F. N.Y. at Buffalo	(	1 ) [ # 1 ) [ #	# [ # [	] ] ]	===== ] 	===== ) 						= = = = = [ [ 	= [ [
Suffolk University P	7	1) [#	# [ # [			C C		כ נ כ נ				== [ [	ב כ
University of Arizona	( (	4)E#	#### # [	==== ##### ] ]	_	 C			: = = = : : : : :				= C C
# of occurrence		<b>↑</b> ↑	↑	↑ 4	↑ 6	↑	1	11 1 1	2 14	1 1 d	18	) 3 2	ት <i>ታ፤</i> 0

Report Date: 89/10/11 JULY 1989 LAW SCHOOL vs./ PASS-FAIL RESULT 6 8 10 12 14 Ε Γ ---E τ 3)[###### [ Е . Ε Ε University of California ( 1)[## [ Ε. Ε ( 1)[## [ Ε Ε Ε **C** Ē University of Colorado ( 4)[######### [ [ [ Ε ( 4)[######### . [ University of Denver ( 2)[##### C [ Г Г E ( - -2)[##### Ε [ University of Idaho ( 2)[##### [ ם ם Г Γ ( 2)[##### [ [ [ ] [ ] : [ Е Ε University of Michigan ( 2)[##### [ [ С \_ [ Ε Ε ( 2)[##### [ [ [ Ε Γ Г University of Montana ( 3)[###### [ [ [ [ Γ 1)[## [ ( C Г [ Ε ( 2)[##### [ [ . [ Ε Ε University of Nebraska ( 1)[## [ ַר <sup>יי</sup> ב ٠. ٢ **C** \* ( 1)[## [ [ [ \_\_\_\_ University of New New ( 1)[## [ [ [ Ε Г University of North ( 3)[###### [ Г Dakota ( 2)[##### Ľ. Ĺ Univ. of No. Carolina ( 1) [## [ Ε Ε Ε \_\_\_\_\_ \_ [ University of Notre ( 1)[## [ ב ב ם ב Ε . [ ( 1) E## E Dame E [ . [ Γ Ľ 9)[############ [ [ University of Oregon ( 1)[## [ [ [ [ ( [ Ε [ [ Г C University of Puget ( 11)[#################### Ε. Sound [ ] ] ######(E ) University of San ( 1)[## [ C Ε **C** P Diego (1)[## [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ University of Santa . [ **C** Clara

[

E

Г

6 8 10

Ε

Ε

12

14

Г

20

18

[ [

# of occurrence

Report Date: 89/10/1:

 	_	 		 		 	 	 		 		 					_	 	 	 	 	 2.7		==-	
									JI	1 3	~	-1		C::>											
										 _	T	-1-	-	C:>	~										
 		 		 	***	 	 	 		 		 *****						 	 	 	 	 			
 		 	_	 		 	 	 		 		 				_		 	 	 	 	 	1111	: ==	

	: == == := == := :				: <b>==</b> == =:	
LAW SCHOOL vs./ PASS-FAI	IL RESULT					
	2	4 6		12 14		18 (1)
F. (	[	c c	ב ב ב	C C	C C	C C
University of Southern ( P Colifornia Law College (	- · · · · · -	C C	C C	C C	C C	
University of Tennessec(	1)[## [ 1)[## [		C C	₹ <b>C</b>	[ [	
Universit, of Utah ( F ( P	2)[##### 1)[## [ 1)[## [	C C C	C C	C C	C C	C C C
University of Washington(					[ [	
University of Wyoming (	1)[## [ 1)[## [	ב ב ב ב	כ כ כ כ	כ כ כ כ		C C
Vermont Law School ( F ( P	3)[###### 1)[## [ 2)[#####	C C	C C	E E C C	[ [ [	6 6 6 6 7 6 6 6 6
Willamette University ( F (	3)[######## 4)[######## 4)[######## [	# C	# C C C	C C C C C	[ [ [ [	
# of occurrence	2	4 6	8 10	12 14	16	18 20

#### Appendix 2

ding	أ.		<b>:</b> -		n	٠, ٧	, ,	٠ بر د	165	5 0	. ~			- د	o ve		۱ ه	٠.	٠ ۵	۰ ۾	47 47	· «	373				4	
Cases Pending										•																other:		
١	0	124	₫ °	ه د	0 0	2	7 -	۰,	. ב	-	ح ب	, ~	7	•	5	7 -	- 4	2 0	2	5	100	771	1241	!		118:	6	
1989		•										٠												•		aralega		
year 1988	,	14.	71		,	a		9 ~	1143	7411	٧.	1,3	37	•	36	•	ָרָייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייייי	77	7 0	6	361	133	1711	1		P. Invest.: Paralegals:	10	
by 1987		239	٤,	<b>⊣</b> ′	<b>.</b>	r	<b>7</b> (	7 -	T - 1	/011		U	<u> </u>	11		0 6	,	c C	7 [	77	0 271	CO T	1681	1		C. P. A. 'S:	6	
*					•		٠,	٦,	<b>n</b> (	٠.	- c	۷,	<b>v</b> r	٠,	٠ -	<b>,</b>	n t	٠,	٠,	<b>.</b>	٦,	٠,	n c	•			· •	
closed 1986		180	4							ncs									-	-		13,	1230	1		Court Reps.:		
cases 1985	m	102	7		m		→•	<del>-</del>	<b>→</b> (	452		•	<b>.</b>	7	•	<del>-</del> 0 (	₹'	•	. •	₹		143	רנר	171			116	
	e	22	~		m,		,	_	,	125	-				,	7		7		-		52	105	0				
of 1984										_								•						•			• •	
Number 1983		7								56									-				r				in 1983: '	
Plus/ Minus	0	-2	•	7	-1	0	-2	0		64	0	0	-5	7	0	₹.	7	7	7		₹	₹,	<b>⊣</b> ;	7	•		in 1984:	
Registered in 1989	-	109	19		6	-	æ	-	9	220	<b>-</b> 43	<b>~</b>		φ.	-	15	4	•	-	11	9	96	13	740	\$52.6		in 1985:	
Registered in 1988	1	111	19	7	10	7	10	-	'n	471	-	m	<b>m</b> :	7		11	5	10	7	10	7	100	12	96/	\$53.4		in 1986: 683	
Available Attorneys	1	145	29	2	13	-	10	2	ω.	1112	-	<b>m</b>		<b>6</b>	-	15	6	24	2	16	₩	185		nnat	•		in 1987:	
city	Haines	Juneau	Ketchikan	Petersburg	Sitka	Wrangell	Barrow	Kotzebue	Nome	Anchorage	Cordova.	Dillingham	Eagle River	Ношег	King Salmon	Kodiak	Palmer	Sold/Kenai	Valdez	Wasilla	Bethe1	Fairbanks	OUT OF STATE	IOLALS			Past Volunteers:	

#### Appendix 3

# ANAL YSTS LINCOMI

INCOME

0400

	OCCURNT NOME	1 .				
		TAKACHE DICANGE I	BROGETED YTD	BALANCE YTD	+OVER I MIDER	ZYTD.
70.00	MEMBERS OF THE CONTRACT OF THE	ii    				11
00 001		708,515	708,515.00	-715,948.60	09 EEB-Z	101
401.00		80,150	80,150.00	74.450 00	00 007 1	***
401.02	ADMISSION FEES - ATTORNEY	000'B	B.000.00	-B-000 00	00.007.6	737
40/5-00	CLE SEMINARS & TAPES	111,000	111,000.00	31 663.551	20.0	
403 00	SUBSTANTIVE LAW SECTIONS	11.090	11,090,00		14,076.15	140%
404 00	ADDRESSING & COPYING	000-2	00.000 7	10,400,00	-4,825.00	29%
405.00	RULE BI PARTICIPATION	007 01	00.007.47	-10,596.20	2,696.20	134%
406-00	DUES INSTALLMENT SUC FFF	000171	17,600.00	-31,000.00	11,400.00	158%
407.00	INTEREST INCOME	06/47	4,750.09	-8,865.00	-985.00	71%
403 00	LALVER REFERENCE FOR	000,02	00.000.00	-70,357.33	10,357.13	11.7%
410 00		000 100	52,000.00	51,389.53	47.019	766
411-00	ANNI IQI COMBENITONI	2/8/62	d5.872.00	19,189.90	6,682.10	74%
415.00	CIVIE OF A ACTA	45,000	45,000.00	-42,064.83	-2,935.17	93%
41.5.00	MICCELL ANDOLD TANDOM	0	00.0	00.00	00.0	0.7
217 00	OTHER PARTY OF THE COMPANY OF THE CO	000.5	2,000.00	5,442,31	3.442.31	/•C,7.C,
00 017		000'9	6,000.00	-B, 264, 00	2.264.00	200-1
00 51 ± 00 € €	BANKAUPICY COURT PROJECT		00.0	00.0		Š
33	ACCOUNTING SVC-FOUNDATION	0	00.0	-2,269.62	69.692.5	
-			/ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Subtel al	# for 0400	1,146,877	1,146,877	-1,209,694	718,59	
*			7001	-105.48%		:
				- 1		
		1,146,877		-1,209,694	718129	
Grand Tot		i		4 : 0 : 0 : 0 : 0 : 0 : 0 : 0 : 0 : 0 :		
			100%	-105.487		*

ij

ij:

i

## の月の人口を入り EXPTINE TO A TOTAL

The state of the same of the s

1

1

ij

1

1 1 11

1

i i

#

### DEPARIMENT:

	GET	54.503	606	5,540	2,725	3,220	21,620	•	, 000	, 130	8,100	00€	,200	000	,714	8,206	, 129	3,213	1,764
	ANNUAL BUDGET	75 1	ו חי	S	N	<b>C</b> C	21		4	)   	œ		N	•	<b>©</b>		<b>m</b>	m	
ADMISSIONS	ACCOUNT NAME		ADMISSIONS PAYROLL TAXES		ADMISSIONS STAFF PENSIONS	BAR EXAM GRADING - MBE	BAR EXAM GRADING - LOCAL	EXAM REVIEW TRAIN&CONSULT	ADMISSIONS LITIGATION	BAR EXAM RENT/ADMIN	ADMISSIONS POSTAGE/SUPPLY	ADMISSIONS TELEPHONE	ADMISSIONS MISCELLANEOUS	BAR EXAM QUESTIONS	ADMISSIONS OFFICE RENT	ADMISSIONS DEPR & AMORT	ADMISSIONS LEASED EQUIP.	ADMISSIONS EQUIP MAINTAIN	ADMISSIONS FINGERPRINTING
	CKI BETS	501-00	502-00	503-00	504-00	505-01	20-505	204-00	207-00	50B-00	209 00	51000	511-00	512-00	513 00	514 00	515-00	516-00	517-00
0050																		_	84

0% 115% 105% 125% 126% 92%

478.50 341.45 0.00

10,608.50 2,028.78

10,130.00 8,100.00 2,200.00 8,714.00

04% 68% 104% 766 766

383.87

00.000.9 9,097.87 5,554.38 3,263.79 3,003.86

6,000.00

B, 206.00 3,129.00 3,213.00

1,300.00

2,651.62 134.79 -209.14

-14.00 96619

155,269

1,750.00

104.72%

1007

102% 109%

1,113.58 351.19 598.86 -69.00 4,050.00 0.00 588.44 2,020.09 -171.22

55,616.58 4,260.19 6,138.86

54,503.00 3,909.00 5,540.00 2,725.00 21,620.00 0.00 4,000.00

+OVER LINDER

BALANCE YID

BUDGETED YID

1117. 1027. 987. 1197.

49.85

3,151.00

3,220.00

0.00

25,670.00 4,588.44

> 1,764.00 148,273 1,764 148,273 ADMISSIONS EQUIP MAINTAIN ADMISSIONS FINCERPRINTING 0000 101

Subtotals

BOARD OF COVERNORS

0090

-5,987.87 -2,044.26 519.80 -7,815.72 989.84 1,965.00 -470.00 2,161.00 2,465.00 2,167.00 0.00 10,564.84 530.00 93.00 00.0 0.00 2,032.13 1,603.74 610.20 3,648.00 1,000.00 2,167.00 2,161.00 2,465.00 9,575.00 2,058.00 B,020.00 2,161 2,465 15,498 9,575 1,000 2,058 3,648 2,167 8,020 TRAVEL & EXPENSE - JUNEAU N/ATNY TRAVEL&EXPENSE-JNU ABA ANNUAL CONVENTION N/ATNY TRAVEL&EXPENSE-ANC TRAVEL&EXPENSE - MISC TRAVEL&EXPENSE - ANC ABA MID YEAR MEETING BAR LEADERSHIP MTG WESTERN STATES BOG TELEPHONE 800 800 800 800 800 900 601-01 601-02 601-04 602-01 602-03 602-03 602-04 603-0<del>2</del> 602-602-602-602-

0% 0% 25% 44% 54%

50% 10% 53%

5%

Person

-84-

×

li

ij,

DEPARTMENT:

	BOARD OF GOVERNORS					
00-909	ACCOUNT NAME BOS MAIL/SUPPLY/MISC BOS CONFERENCE ROOM RENT	AWALAR BIOGET	BUDGETED YTD ====================================	BALANCE YTD	+0VER-LNDER	2777 ==== 1982 592
Subtotal	s for 0600	57,572	57,572	41,430	-16,142	
×			7001	71.96%		
0200	DISCIPLINE/ BAR COUNSEL					
701-00		189,254	189,254.00	179,625.09	-9,628.91	756
00-E0Z	D/BC PAYNOLL IAXES D/BC STAFF INSURANCE	14,352 15,322	14,352.00	14,694,46	342.46	102%
704 00	D/BC STAFF PENSIONS	8,120	8,120.00	2, 382.36	-5,737.64	29%
706-01	D/BC TRAVEL&EXPENSE-NOBC	1,000 5,808	1,000.00 5.808.00	1,418.00	418.00	142%
706-02 70.407		2,726	2,726.00	2,042,29	-683.71	75%
707 - 00	CONTRACTLABOR/CONFLICTLIT	056	950.00	346.70	0E.E03	36%
708 00	D/BC MAIL/SUPPLY/COPY/MSC	14,000	14,000.00	14,906.67	906.67	106%
710-00	D/BC TELEPHONE	1,500	1,500.00	0.00	1,500.00	70
711-00	D/BC RENT	22,261	22,261.00	22,164.78		100%
715-00	INFORMATION & TRAINING	9,000	5,000.00	00.0	5,000.00	20
716-00	DEPR &	22,567	22,567.00	15,274.52	-7,292.48	7,01
718-00 718-00	D/BC LEASED EQUIPMENT D/BC EQUIP MAINTENANCE	B, 604 B, 836	8,604.00 8,836.00	9,281.91 8,260.62	8E.272-	1087. 93%
Subtotals	e for 0700	00E'SEE	00E.SEE	BE2 10E	-33,76E-	
•			100%	7.64.48		

-85-

1

DEPARTMENT:

0800 AMINISTRATION

	the same time them the the same time time time time time time time ti		**** **** **** **** **** **** **** **** ****			
	ACCOUNT NAME	ANNUAL BUDGET	BUDGETED YTD	BALANCE YTD	+OVER -UNDER	ZYTD
				11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11		11
801-00		127,924	127,924.00	127,232,32	-491 4B	<b>,.00</b>
00208		10,286	10,286.00	10,608.57	72 556	/E01
803-00		11,859	11,859.00	12.444.0A	585 08	100
804 00	ADMIN STAFF PENSIONS	6,141	6,141.00	5-111.48	מה פעה 1	7007
80500	AMIN TELEPHONE	3,100	3,100.00	3,786,45	76.71.35	7001
807-01	AD TRAVEL&EXPENSE-ABAMDYR	862,5	2,298.00	1.377.25	27 056	707
B07 <b>0</b> 2		2,224	2,224.00	1.382.11	- A41 A9	700
807-03		4,649	4,649.00	2,322.07	רם אקר ק	* 10 U
607.04		<b>Q</b>	00.0	00.0	00-0	
807-05	AD TRAVEL&EXPENSE - ACCT	4, 799	4, 799.00	3,316.53	1.40.247	7.67
00-B0B		7,230	7,230.00	6,764.70	465.30	244
00-60F		8,700	B, 700.00	4,789.93	3.910.07	555
81000		19,800	19,800.00	15,520.46	-4.279.54	767
H11 -00		7,040	7,040.00	2,541.42	4,498.58	36%
E12: 00	POT NEW PRINCIPAL	000 '9	00.000.00	6,868,9	899.94	11.32
00-F19	OFF ICE	18,796	18,996.00	15,685,20	-3.310.80	2.2
υ H15-00	THE PARTY	B, 700	8,700.00	8,298,50	-401 50	720
81600		000 °E	2,000.00	3.084.70	1.084 70	1547
819-00	ADMIN PROPECLA INSURANCE	18,428	18,428.00	17,166 BS	1 541 14	
00-020	ADMIN DEPR & AMORT	18,464	18,464.00	75 797.51	FI - 10361	/ 1/
823 · 00	ADMIN MISCELLANEOUS	2,500	2,500,00	1.170 29	17.00712	707
824-00	PENSION FUND ADMIN COSTS	1,600	1,600.00	11.126.93	-473 07	7/1
					10.517	<b>'</b> 0'
Subtotals		292,738	292,738	751,127	-29,611	
	<u>.</u>					
<b>7</b>			100%	788.68		
0060	LAWYER REFERRAL SERVICE					
And Sentent American Committee of the Co		And American Agency Services				
901 00	REF	14,839	14,839.00	15.005.27	166. 27	101
70.00	REF	1,371	1,371.00	1,490.73	119 Z	1007
00-504	LAW REF STAFF INGURANCE	1,605	1,605.00	1,729.23	124.23	100%
905-01	מבע	168	168.00	127.32	40.68	7.97
905 02	REF ADVERTISING -	4,400	4,460,00	2,895,96 3r 3nc c	754.04	7.67
					60.4614.3	<del>7</del>   c

# EXPENSE BUDGET AND YSTS

DEPARTMENT:	
DEPONTMENT	
DEPONTHEN	••
	<b>EPANTHEN</b>

THE ROLL WAS ARREST TO THE PARTY OF THE PART

## 0000 O	AWYER REFERRAL					
		The second secon				
	ACCOUNT NAME	ANNUAL EXIOGIT	BUDGETED YID	BALANCE YTD	+OVER LINDER	XYTD
ŧ	I AW REF TELEPHONE I D. 800					H H H
00-206	REF	1,900	1.300.00	1.475.68	432.68	111%
00 1306	LAW REF OFFICE RENT	4,736	4,736.00	4.4.10 94	(1) 1 (1) 1	113%
00-606	LAW REF DEPR & AMORT	68.8	6,819,00	4.658.44	00.011 70.010	777
910 00	REF	207'2	2,607.00	2,594.99	07.01.	7001
711.00	LAW REF EQUIP MAINTENANCE	6,678	€,6.7B.00	2,503.23	174.77	93%
						. )
Subtatel	s for 0900			/B/ 154	4.456	
<b>*</b>			1001	79. 76%		
いい こうしょう いっぱん アンドランド かんしょう かんしょう かんしゅう かんしゅう						
1000	CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION					
00-000	OF SE	91,000	91,000.00	129.773.11	11 EZZ.8E	7EB1
	7.	47,531	47,531.00	47,813.04	282.04	101%
1001		4,194	4,194.00	4,392.61	198.61	105%
103 00		6,787	6,787.00	7,515.20	728.20	1112
00 501		7,081	Z,081.00	1,855.43	-225.57	268
105 00		1,300	1,300.00	1,480.42	180.42	1142
00 COT	CLE SUFFLY/MISCELL ANEOUS	2,250	00°032°	3,742.60	1,492.60	166%
- 1	-	יינס פ	4,605,00	2,969.72	-1,635.28	74%
109-00	OFFICE	7*030	9,636.00	6,914.78	-2,921.22	70%
110 00	CLE LEASED EQUIPMENT	698.2	2. BAB 00	10.0/01/1	VE - / / P	7//
		2,945	2,945.00	2.945.03	77.0 0.0	1007
113 00	CLE COMMITTEE EXPENSE	1,970	1,970.00	2,295.14	325.14	117%
Subtotals	. for 1000	195,520	195,520	232,241	36,721	
2			100%	118.78%		

# The second secon

DEPARTMENT:

1100

The same of the sa

ITE ARBITRATION

1.01	ACCOUNT NAME	ANNUAL BUDGET	BUDGETED YTD	BALANCE YID	10VER UNDER	ZYTD
ii c			######################################			1 11 11
,		198,845	18,865.00	16,942.84	1,922.16	706
	PAYRO	1,601	1,601.00	1,595.78	5.22	100%
		089.4	C 00 .030 .	7,750.32	129.68	756
		216	917.00	247.86	669.14	27%
		920	850.00	1,498.73	648.73	176%
00 000	FEERING PRICE DENIE	01450	3,450.00	2,390.59	-1,059.41	%69
. 1		/C/ 17	4,757.00	5, 363, 92	566.92	112%
00 500	FASED	70747	4,787,00	3,640.02	1,546.9B	
		1.874	1 878 00	1,070-77	77.60	10 3%
		1,500	1,500.00	00.0E	-1,470.00	727 67
Subtotals	for 1100	43,306	43,306	37,678	-5,628	<b>W</b>
7			100%	87.00%		
88 1 1300 THE	ALASKA BAR RAG					
distribution of the state of th						
001-00	BAR RAG TYPESET/LAYOUT	21,810	21,810.00	24,240.05	2,430.05	111%
	£ 2€	8,4/8 1,446	1.446.00	6,002.20	2,475.80	71%
00-500	RAG	7,284	7,284.00	5.272.75	7.011 25	****
7	RAC	1,000	1,000.00	00.00	1,000.00	
00 (0.)	EAR RAG MISCELLANEOUS	000.1	1,000.00	86.019	20.486	717
Subtotals	for 1300	41,018	41,018	38,480	<b>BES</b> • 2	
			100%	210.17		
1500 SUB	SUBSTANTIVE LAW SECTIONS					
00 000	SUBSTANTIVE LAW SECTIONS	005.01	10,500.00	92*115401	72.11	<b>::</b> 001
Sibtorate	FOF 1500	10,1,00	000-401			
			1002	100.112		

-88-

# SISA FORCE LEDGER DEMLARK

## DEPARTMENT:

MISCELL PAGOUS DEPARTMENTS

0002

	The second secon			- nome		. !
CM BUS	ACCOUNT NAME	ANNUAL BUDGET	BUDGETED YTD	BALANCE YTD	+OVER UNDER	ZYTD
120 00	MISCELL PNEOUS COMMITTEES	5,500	00.005.62	4,582.92	917.08	#### 03%
140-00	INTIKE / AK LAW REVIEW	20,000	GB, 000, 00	78,000.00	00.0	100%
1130 00	ALM AL CONVENTION	45,000	45,000.00	41,647.82	. 3,352.18	21.6
210.00	MEMBERSHIP DIRECTORY	0	00.0	15,236.77	15,236.77	70
211-00	ETHICS OPINIONS	00-0	00.00	164.62	164.82	70
00 082	MISCELLANEOUB LITIGATION	•	00.0	1,000.00	1,000.00	70
00 052	REMODEL ING/MOVING EXPENSE	1,000	1,000.00	00.00	1,000.00	70
00-092	LOAN INTEREST/LOAN FEES	13,461	17,461.00	8,320.P9	5,140.71	62%
00 082	COMPUTER SYSTEM TRAINING	4,110	4,110.00	1,050.00	2,760.00	46%
00-062	1990 N LEGALCONF PLANNING	7,960	00.096.7	10,555.76	2,595.76	1117
00-00E	ACCOUNTING SVC FOUNDATION	0	00.0	6,836.11	6,836.11	0%
310 00	BANKRUPTCY COURT PROJECT	•	00.00	00.00	00.0	7.0
		105,031	105,031	118,194	E91-E1	
Subtetals	s for 2000					
<b>X</b>			100%	112.53%	v	· \
		1,277,501	1,277,501	1,247,254	792,36	
Grand Tota	かいく アンドン・プログラン・アンドン・アンドン・アンドン・アンドン・アンドン・アンドン・アンドン・アン	· 中世界是古典的新典的神典技术。	2、京井の日世代日刊日日日日日日 フィーン・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・・	10 H H H H H H H H H H H H H H H	######################################	
			200	**C **C		
Percentages						

-89-

Income Summary for the Twelve Month Period Ending December 31, 1989

#### INCOME

Membership Dues \$	715,949
Admission Fees	82,450
Continuing Legal Education	155,592
Substantive Law Sections	6,265
Addressing & Copying	10,596
Rule 81 Participation	31,000
Split Payment Service Fees	8,865
Interest	70,357
Lawyer Referral	51,389
The Alaska Bar Rag	19,190
Annual Convention	42,065
State of Alaska	0
Penalties on Late Dues	8,264
Bankruptcy Court Project	0
Accounting Svcs - Foundation	2,270
Miscellaneous	5,442

TOTAL INCOME

\$1,209,694

#### **EXPENSE**

Admissions	155,269
Board of Governors	41,430
Discipline/Bar Counsel	301,538
Administration	263,127
Lawyer Referral Service	43,787
Continuing Legal Education	232,241
Fee Arbitration	37,678
The Alaska Bar Rag	38,480
Substantive Law Sections	10,511
Committee Expense	4,583
Duke/AK Law Review	28,000
Annual Convention	41,648
Membership Directory	15,236
Ethics Opinions	165
Miscellaneous Litigation	1,000
Remodeling/Moving Expense	0
Loan Interest/Bank Fees	8,320
Computer System Training	1,850
1990 Northern Legal Conference	10,555
Accounting Svcs - Foundation	6,836
Bankruptcy Court Project	0

TOTAL EXPENSE

\$1,242,254

NET GAIN (LOSS)

\$ -32,560

Income Summary for the Twelve Month Period Ending December 31, 1989

#### INCOME

Membership Dues	\$ 715,949
Admission Fees	82,450
Continuing Legal Education	155,592
Substantive Law Sections	6,265
Addressing & Copying	10,596
Rule 81 Participation	31,000
Split Payment Service Fees	8,865
Interest	70,357
Lawyer Referral	51,389
The Alaska Bar Rag	19,190
Annual Convention	42,065
State of Alaska	0
Penalties on Late Dues	8,264
Bankruptcy Court Project	0
Accounting Svcs - Foundation	2,270
Miscellaneous	5,442
	**

TOTAL INCOME

\$1,209,694

#### EXPENSE

Admissions	155,269
Board of Governors	41,430
Discipline/Bar Counsel	301,538
Administration	263,127
Lawyer Referral Service	43,787
Continuing Legal Education	232,241
Fee Arbitration	37,678
The Alaska Bar Rag	38,480
Substantive Law Sections	10,511
Committee Expense	4,583
Duke/AK Law Review	28,000
Annual Convention	41,648
Membership Directory	15,236
Ethics Opinions	165
Miscellaneous Litigation	1,000
Remodeling/Moving Expense	0
Loan Interest/Bank Fees	8,320
Computer System Training	1,850
1990 Northern Legal Conference	10,555
Accounting Svcs - Foundation	6,836
Bankruptcy Court Project	0

TOTAL EXPENSE

\$1,242,254

NET GAIN (LOSS)

**-32,560** 

#### CLIENT SECURITY FUND

Financial Position as of December 31, 1989

#### ASSETS:

Operating Account-1st National	\$ 7,565	
Merrill Lynch Ready Assets Account Investments Total Cash	34,854 293,468	\$335,887
Accounts Receivable Alaska Bar Association Interest Receivable Total Receivables	23,350 11,349	34,699
TOTAL ASSETS:		<u>\$370,586</u>
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE:		
Liabilities Accrued 1990 Active Member Assessments Claims Payable Total Liabilities	23,350 0	23,350
Fund Balance Client Security Fund Balance as of December 31, 1988 Gain (loss) for 1989 Total Fund Balance	298,268 48,968	347,236
TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE		\$370,586

#### CLIENT SECURITY FUND

#### Income Summary

for the Twelve Month Period Ending December 31, 1989

#### INCOME

Active ABA Membe	er Assessments	\$22,958 26,664
TOTAL INCOME		\$49,622
EXPENSE		
Claims Awarded		<b>\$</b> 654
NET GAIN (LOSS)		\$48,968

#### ALASKA BAR FOUNDATION

#### IOLTA

Financial Position as of December 31, 1989

#### ASSETS:

Cash and Investments				
lst National Acct	2 m - 1	\$24,644		
Sec Pac NOW Acct		40,424		
Sec Pac MMKT Acct		98,045		
Total		*	\$163,113	
Account Receivable-Interest	•		1,261	
TOTAL ASSETS:			11 a	\$164,374

#### LIABILITIES and FUND BALANCE:

Liabilities		
Grants Payable	25,000	
Accounts Payable	457	
Total Liabilities		25,457
Fund Balance		
Funded Capital	300	

IOLTA Grant Fund		
Balance at 12-31-88	84,730	
Increase(Decrease)	53,887	
Total	138,61	7

Total Fund Balance 138,917

#### TOTAL LIABILITIES and FUND BALANCE:

\$164,374

#### IOLTA Grant Fund Income Summary for the Twelve Month Period Ending December 31, 1989

#### Income

	Interest from Att Interest on IOLTA Total Income	\$106,912 6,765	
Ex	pense		
	IOLTA Grants Made Bank Fees/Costs Program Expenses Total Expense	50,000 5,758 4,032	

Increase(Decrease)

\$53,887

그리다 하는 하고 그런 남이 그 가는 장독 시험 그 모든다.	
	그 명시 열차 나가나 본 목록을 다듬하다니다. 얼마나 하나 하다
하는데 그는 그 사람이 되는 것이 그는 것이 없다고 하나요?	
	그렇게 고싶이 없이들도 모든 것이다고 그리고 있으면도 한 글라다다.
그들은 일 전 한 본 환경 이 가능 전쟁 하는 그 사람의 살이 어떻게 되었다.	- 14 1 (1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
회사가 가면 화물하다 그 있는 그 사람이 하는 것 나는 일이다.	이 교회에 그는 학생들은 어떻게 된 생님, 그는 문화를 모르고 그래요?
	그들 전 아이 이 그 회사는 이 바로 사람이 모르게 하는데 다른데 되었다.
불어 어떻게 가는데 그리지 않는데 이렇게 하나라는 밤	집 하는 어머니는 남자의 관리를 하는 때 없는 그를 달래요? 어머니
	시아 이 얼룩됐게 모든 아이 그는 것이 하는 사람이 얼마를 먹는다.
원 사람들은 이 것은 중심하는 경시에 대한 사람들이 가는 살이 먹었다.	
공연항공의 중요회 (소요) 그 교회 통취를 무용하는 것	그는 그리 놀란 단청인들이 네는 것으로 그 되는 안하철 모이 되다.
	이 말이 살아가 그는 모양하면 하고 생기로 가는 모양한다. 그
의 회사 중국 회사 기업을 내고 있는 제 문학가 있었다는 그릇들은 그	
네트 그는 사람들은 그런 시험에 되는 것이 나는 사람이 본 것이다.	그리고 그는 그 그들은 그는 하고 시작된 그래요요요?
	이 그 그들은 사람이 가능하는 일이 있는 것 같은 바다를 다시다.
,我们就是我们的是是一个人的,我们就是一个人的,我们就是一个人的,我们就是一个人的,我们就是一个人的。""我们的,我们就是一个人,我们就是一个人,我们就是一个人	
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.
	그 강으로 그림, 그 이 생활이라면 전문인데 그렇게 다.

그는 이 보는 그렇게 되어 살아 전에 함께 즐겁다면 한글로봇들은 얼굴하고 있는 아파스플을 후위 얼마 되어 어린 이글로운 반에 그물로 가장을 받았다. 나는 물이 어디를
그 네트를 보면 되고 있는데 그렇게 하고 있다는 그들은 그리는 일반 학생에서 다음이 되는데 목모모하는 이 되면 되었다.
그리는 한 물건들은 이웃 독리를 존대한 이름을 하는데 되는 사람이고 작가는 연락 폭력하면 되면 되는데 아들말이 살아지다.
는 사용하는 사용을 하는 생각에 한다는 한다. 전한 상상에 가장하는 사용되는 것이 되었다. 한 경기 등을 찾아하고 있는 것이 찾아를 보지는 것이라고 있다면 하는 것을 모습니다. 그는 사용으로 가장 (1985년 1985년 1987년 1일 전한 전상 사용을 하는 사용되었다. 그 것이라는 사용하는 사용을 하는 것이 되었다. 그는 사용을 받았다. 그는 사용을 하는 것이다. 그 사
그리고는 이렇게 하는 그는 사이의 생각은 사람들은 생각적이 가지를 하고 되었다. 그런 사람들이 되었다면 하는 사람들이 되었다면 하는 것이다면 그렇게 되었다면 하는 것이다면 하는데
그러면 이 사람들에 가는 이 이 나는 생각들이 되었다. 이 사회 가는 생활을 하면 하는 사람들이 가는 사람들이 되었다.
"我们还是我们的我们是我们的我们会,我们还没有的我们的是我们的。""我们,我们的我们就是我们的,我们还有一个女人的,我们就不会看到。""我们就是我们的,我们就是
en e